



**Planet Depos®**  
We Make It *Happen™*

---

# Transcript of Hearing

**Date:** July 6, 2020

**Case:** Raminder Kaur - Large Family Child Care

**Planet Depos**

**Phone:** 888.433.3767

**Email:** [transcripts@planetdepos.com](mailto:transcripts@planetdepos.com)

**www.planetdepos.com**

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

1 (1 to 4)

1	OFFICE OF ZONING AND ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND -----X RAMINDER KAUR, : Case No.: CU 20-03 Applicant. : -----X  HEARING BEFORE HEARING OFFICER TAMMY CITARAMANIS Conducted Virtually Monday, July 6, 2020 9:30 a.m.  Job No.: 307554 Pages: 1 - 51 Transcribed by: Jade K. King	3	A P P E A R A N C E S FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY OFFICE OF ZONING AND ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS:  TAMMY CITARAMANIS - HEARING EXAMINER  ON BEHALF OF THE APPLICANT: RAMINDER KAUR MANPREET ROSY SODHI  ALSO PRESENT: JON FREY - TECHNICAL SUPPORT
2	Transcription of HEARING BEFORE HEARING EXAMINER TAMMY CITARAMANIS, conducted virtually.  Pursuant to agreement, before Lee Utterback, AAERT CER.	4	C O N T E N T S  EXAMINATION BY THE HEARING EXAMINER ..... 8

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

2 (5 to 8)

<p>5</p> <p>1 PROCEEDINGS</p> <p>2 HEARING EXAMINER: We are on the record.</p> <p>3 Today is Monday, July 6th, 2020. It is</p> <p>4 approximately 9:30 a.m.</p> <p>5 Pursuant to a notice of hearing issued May</p> <p>6 20th, 2020, I'm calling the Conditional Use</p> <p>7 Application 20-03, Raminder Kaur Group Daycare --</p> <p>8 I think it's also known as Vibrantots Daycare.</p> <p>9 Address is 501 Silver Spring Avenue, Silver Spring,</p> <p>10 Maryland 20910, lot 17, block D. It is in the R60</p> <p>11 zone. The legal description, according to the tax</p> <p>12 record, is Blair-Takoma Park, section 2, tax account</p> <p>13 number 13-02977061.</p> <p>14 This is a request to expand an existing</p> <p>15 eight-child daycare to allow up to 12-children</p> <p>16 group daycare.</p> <p>17 My name is Tammy Citaramanis. I am the</p> <p>18 hearing examiner. My role here is to take</p> <p>19 evidence and make a decision. My decision can be</p> <p>20 appealed. That will be part of -- you will have</p> <p>21 the notice in the decision.</p> <p>22 Could I ask the parties to identify</p> <p>23 themselves? I see we have a court reporter, I see</p> <p>24 the court reporter. And I believe -- Lee</p> <p>25 Utterback?</p>	<p>7</p> <p>1 MS. SODHI: There you go.</p> <p>2 MS. KAUR: Raminder Kaur.</p> <p>3 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay, great. Before</p> <p>4 we get started, I just wanted to make sure so that</p> <p>5 the court reporter has your name. If you have any</p> <p>6 questions -- I'm going to ask you to spell it when</p> <p>7 I swear you in. I'm looking at -- hold on</p> <p>8 a second. Give me a moment. The only other</p> <p>9 people that I see that are signed in are assistant</p> <p>10 Nana Johnson, and we have Jon Frey, who is also --</p> <p>11 he's our technical support, since we're all doing</p> <p>12 remote hearings for the first time. So if we have</p> <p>13 to raise the flag, he'll come in and help us. But</p> <p>14 other than that, I don't see anybody else.</p> <p>15 Ms. Sodhi, will you be testifying?</p> <p>16 MS. SODHI: If I need to. I know Mom is</p> <p>17 the only one on the application.</p> <p>18 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. I just wanted</p> <p>19 to make sure. Just so you know, this is -- I'm</p> <p>20 just going to give you some preliminaries. Your</p> <p>21 mic and your camera need to be on when you're</p> <p>22 testifying. The hearing is being recorded. You</p> <p>23 should see a little red button at the top. And</p> <p>24 the reason it's being recorded is to help the</p> <p>25 court reporter go back if it's needed. It's not</p>
<p>6</p> <p>1 COURT REPORTER: Yes, I'm the court</p> <p>2 reporter. That would be me.</p> <p>3 HEARING EXAMINER: I can't hear you.</p> <p>4 Wait a minute. Hold on a second.</p> <p>5 COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. I'm Lee</p> <p>6 Utterback. I'm the court reporter.</p> <p>7 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. Is the</p> <p>8 applicant here? I need you to turn on your mic as</p> <p>9 well as your camera.</p> <p>10 MS. SODHI: Hi, I'm Manpreet Sodhi and</p> <p>11 I am with the -- with Raminder Kaur right there.</p> <p>12 We're the applicant.</p> <p>13 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. I have the</p> <p>14 applicant as Raminder Kaur.</p> <p>15 MS. SODHI: Yes.</p> <p>16 HEARING EXAMINER: Can you fix your</p> <p>17 camera up a little bit, Ms. Kaur. Am I saying</p> <p>18 your last name correctly?</p> <p>19 MS. SODHI: Absolutely saying it right.</p> <p>20 And, Mom, can you turn your microphone on? Unmute</p> <p>21 yourself.</p> <p>22 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. Can Ms. Kaur</p> <p>23 identify herself? I can't hear her.</p> <p>24 MS. SODHI: Mom, you have to turn it on.</p> <p>25 HEARING EXAMINER: There you go.</p>	<p>8</p> <p>1 the official record. The official record is going</p> <p>2 to be what is produced by the court reporter.</p> <p>3 I control the exhibits. I'm assuming</p> <p>4 you all have copies of your own exhibits, but</p> <p>5 I control the exhibits. So, for example, if you</p> <p>6 need to see an exhibit, I can pull it up. If you</p> <p>7 need me to zoom in, I will zoom in. So if you're</p> <p>8 pushing buttons and nothing's coming up, it's</p> <p>9 because I have control. So you just need to let</p> <p>10 me know.</p> <p>11 All your testimony will be under oath.</p> <p>12 It's a pretty informal proceeding, and the reason</p> <p>13 we are doing it remotely, because of the COVID-19</p> <p>14 pandemic and the, you know, regulations by the</p> <p>15 county right now. So it's good that we can</p> <p>16 proceed forward.</p> <p>17 So since I don't see anybody else in</p> <p>18 there besides Ms. Sodhi, I will go ahead and just</p> <p>19 in the event that you do testify, Ms. Sodhi, I'm</p> <p>20 going to swear both of you in.</p> <p>21 RAMINDER KAUR,</p> <p>22 having been duly affirmed, testified as follows:</p> <p>23 MANPREET ROSY SODHI,</p> <p>24 having been duly affirmed, testified as follows:</p> <p>25 EXAMINATION BY THE HEARING EXAMINER</p>

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

3 (9 to 12)

<p>9</p> <p>1 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. So we're going 2 to start with -- you can put your hands down now. 3 Thank you. 4 We're going to start with Ms. Kaur. If 5 you could identify yourself, state your address 6 for the record. 7 MS. KAUR: Okay. 501 Silver Spring 8 Avenue, Silver Spring, Maryland 20910. 9 HEARING EXAMINER: Did you say your name? 10 I know we just -- Raminder ... 11 MS. KAUR: Raminder Kaur. 12 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. And just so 13 that we all know, and I've been guilty of it as 14 well, because we are recording this and we have to 15 be kind to the court reporter, because he is the 16 one who's going to make sure everything is down 17 correctly. So if I ask a question, wait until 18 I finish my questions. If you're answering, I'll 19 wait. And everybody will get an opportunity to 20 speak if you need to make a speech. So just let 21 people finish their sentences. 22 Okay. Ms. Kaur. 23 MS. KAUR: Yes. 24 HEARING EXAMINER: You submitted 25 an application. You are the owner and the</p>	<p>11</p> <p>1 HEARING EXAMINER: The staff report 2 that's -- Mencarini, Katherine Mencarini. 3 MS. KAUR: Yes. 4 HEARING EXAMINER: She -- you have 5 reviewed that? 6 MS. KAUR: Yes, ma'am. 7 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. 8 I need her to answer. I understand -- 9 I need to know that she actually has. 10 So there is a staff report, and you have 11 reviewed it? 12 MS. KAUR: Yes. 13 HEARING EXAMINER: And there was 14 a planning board letter basically affirming it. 15 I think they held the hearing June 4th. And 16 there's a letter dated June 16th, 2020, that -- 17 support it, and approved, recommended approval. 18 MS. KAUR: Yeah. 19 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. And also I have 20 an email that I believe you were on amending -- 21 I asked them to amend the development chart 22 because it didn't include the actual dimensions, 23 set-back dimensions. That was dated June 19th, 24 2020, so it's considered in addition to the staff 25 report. You reviewed that as well?</p>
<p>10</p> <p>1 provider? 2 MS. KAUR: Yes, ma'am. 3 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. And do you have 4 any preliminary matters that you need to address, 5 any amendments, any changes to your application, 6 or is everything that you've submitted current? 7 MS. KAUR: Yes, it is current. 8 HEARING EXAMINER: Everything is current? 9 Okay. 10 MS. KAUR: Yes. 11 HEARING EXAMINER: And you're currently 12 operating a daycare licensed for eight children? 13 MS. KAUR: Yes. 14 HEARING EXAMINER: And you're seeking to 15 expand that? 16 MS. KAUR: Yes, ma'am. 17 HEARING EXAMINER: To 12, okay. And 18 you've been in operation since 2003 or 19 something -- 20 MS. KAUR: Yes. Something like this, 21 yes. 22 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. Have you 23 reviewed the staff report that was issued May 24 22nd, 2020? 25 MS. KAUR: Staff report?</p>	<p>12</p> <p>1 MS. KAUR: Yes. 2 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. So staff made 3 six conditions, recommended approval based on six 4 conditions. Have you reviewed those conditions? 5 They're on -- 6 MS. KAUR: On the six -- yes. Yes, 7 ma'am. 8 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. And I'm going 9 to read them just so that the record is clear. 10 The first one is: 11 "The group daycare facility must be limited 12 to a maximum of 12 children, one resident employee, 13 and up to two non-resident employees." 14 Is that correct? 15 MS. KAUR: Yes. 16 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. 17 "The hours of operation are limited to 18 Monday through Friday, 7 a.m. to 6 p.m." 19 Which is consistent with your current hours 20 of operation? 21 MS. KAUR: Yes, ma'am. 22 HEARING EXAMINER: Any change -- that's 23 correct, okay. If there are any changes, we'll 24 talk about them. 25 MS. KAUR: Okay.</p>

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

4 (13 to 16)

<p>13</p> <p>1 HEARING EXAMINER: These are just 2 recommendations. I will likely add more or 3 clarify, but I just want to go through what you 4 have right now. 5 "The applicant must schedule staggered 6 drop-off and pick-up of children with a maximum of 7 two vehicles dropping off or picking up children 8 during any 15-minute period." 9 You understand that? 10 MS. KAUR: Yes, ma'am. 11 HEARING EXAMINER: And just so that you 12 know, I will add to that that you will have to 13 amend your contract with your parents or have 14 an attachment with your parents, them signing -- 15 you assigning them a period so they know that it's 16 enforceable. 17 MS. KAUR: Yes. 18 HEARING EXAMINER: We'll get to that. 19 I don't know if Nana has given you a copy of that, 20 but we'll get it to you. Or if you have one 21 already, you just let us know. 22 Number 4: 23 "No more than eight children may play 24 outside at any one time." 25 You understand that?</p>	<p>15</p> <p>1 You understand? 2 MS. KAUR: Yes. 3 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. With that 4 reading of those and talking about some of the 5 amendments that I will make, do you adopt the 6 staff report's contents as your own testimony? 7 And the reason for that is it just -- they have 8 laid it out, and if it's your testimony -- your 9 testimony can be whatever you want it to be, but 10 we start from there. So do you accept and adopt 11 their staff report as your testimony? 12 MS. KAUR: Yes. Yes, ma'am. 13 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. The photos that 14 you submitted with the application, I believe they 15 show up as Exhibit 17(a) through (f). Who took 16 those photos, and when approximately were they 17 taken? Doesn't have to be the exact date, 18 just ... 19 MS. KAUR: Which photo? 20 MS. SODHI: May I speak, or is it just 21 she has to say it? 22 HEARING EXAMINER: Just -- let me see if 23 she has any difficulties. Because I can always 24 have you -- you will testify as well. 25 Do you know that information? If not we</p>
<p>14</p> <p>1 MS. KAUR: Yes. 2 HEARING EXAMINER: Just so that you know, 3 that one also will be amended that one hour in the 4 morning and one hour at -- no more than one hour 5 in the afternoon. So it's basically a total of 6 two hours, but they're split, one in the morning, 7 one in the afternoon, not two and two. 8 Number 5: 9 "Outside play time may not occur prior 10 to 9 a.m." 11 Understand that? 12 MS. KAUR: Yes. 13 HEARING EXAMINER: Yes, okay. 14 Number 6: 15 "The applicant must obtain a fence 16 permit from the Department of Permitting Services 17 (DPS) for the fence in the front yard. The fence 18 must be consistent in height and material and must 19 meet the zoning ordinance design standards for 20 a fence within a residential zone. Due to the 21 location of an existing storm drain easement in 22 the front yard, the applicant will also need to 23 enter a revocable agreement with the county to 24 replace and/or improve the fence in its current 25 locations."</p>	<p>16</p> <p>1 can ask your -- your daughter? 2 MS. SODHI: Yes. 3 MS. KAUR: Yes. 4 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. Did you take 5 those photos? 6 MS. KAUR: No. 7 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. All right. 8 Then I will ask your daughter when she testifies, 9 okay? So, okay. 10 Were you waving your hand? 11 MS. SODHI: Oh, no. Sorry. 12 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. So with regards 13 to the daycare operations, how large is the 14 daycare operation and where is the located? 15 MS. KAUR: In the basement. 16 HEARING EXAMINER: And how big is it? 17 Because I saw in your documents that you 18 submitted, you didn't include the size, the 19 measurements of the space. 20 MS. KAUR: You have a measurement, right? 21 HEARING EXAMINER: I don't. All I have 22 is the -- 23 MS. KAUR: (Speaking off-mic). 24 MS. SODHI: May I speak? I think she's 25 asking me a question.</p>

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

5 (17 to 20)

<p>17</p> <p>1 MS. KAUR: Yeah. I don't -- I don't 2 remember the measurement. 3 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. So did you fill 4 out the application or did your daughter? 5 MS. KAUR: She did. 6 HEARING EXAMINER: Oh, okay. So if she 7 filled it out, but you're aware of what's in it? 8 MS. KAUR: Yes. 9 HEARING EXAMINER: That's correct? Okay. 10 All right. So then is -- you said there's no 11 changes. Then maybe I will ask your daughter 12 questions at this point, and I'll come back to you 13 and if you have any changes, so it sounds like 14 it's a collaborative effort. Just so long as you 15 know that everything that's in there that she 16 presented is true. Okay. 17 So, Ms. Sodhi, I'm going to go ahead, 18 since you've already been sworn in, going to go 19 ahead and ask you the same questions. Let's start 20 with the photos. Who took them and when, 21 approximately, were they taken? 22 MS. SODHI: I took the pictures. I took 23 the photos of -- and I believe those are of the 24 street and the sidewalk, if that's what we're 25 referring to.</p>	<p>19</p> <p>1 we've all been at home. 2 MS. SODHI: Exactly. That's what I'm -- 3 this year, it's been ... 4 But, you know what, I do believe it was 5 cold. Maybe it was early -- sorry, I'm going to 6 look back just to be a little bit more precise, 7 because I should still have them saved. 8 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. Why don't you 9 do that. I'm going to go off the record for 10 a moment and figure out why I can't share my 11 screen with you. So I'm going to mute and take 12 off my camera. Go ahead and you can stay on if 13 you want, but we're going to go off the record, 14 which means it is not going to be recorded. 15 I have to figure out why I can't share my 16 camera -- my photos. Okay. I'm going to stop. 17 MR. FREY: Muting camera. Just let me 18 know. 19 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. 20 (Break taken) 21 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. So we're back 22 on the record. It's 10:03. Again, thanks for 23 your patience. So we were talking about the 24 photos, and let's see if I can bring them up. 25 Hold on. Okay. Can you see the photo?</p>
<p>18</p> <p>1 HEARING EXAMINER: Hold on. Well, hold 2 on a second. I can pull them up real quick so we 3 know what we're talking about. But let me see. 4 It is -- okay. Do you see the photos on the 5 screen? 6 MS. SODHI: I do not yet. 7 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. Hold on 8 a second. Okay. Here we go. Do you see that 9 now? 10 MS. SODHI: No, nothing yet. 11 HEARING EXAMINER: Bear with me. 12 MS. SODHI: Always. 13 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay, let's see if 14 this will work. You don't see it yet? 15 MS. SODHI: I do not, but I believe those 16 are the only pictures that I did present, were the 17 ones of the house and the street, the sidewalks. 18 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. 19 MS. SODHI: And those were definitely 20 taken by me. I'm actually just trying to look 21 back in my camera roll just so I can give you 22 a more exact date of the pictures. I know it was 23 sometime last year. I don't believe it was this 24 year. But then this year has been a -- 25 HEARING EXAMINER: What year? This --</p>	<p>20</p> <p>1 MS. SODHI: Yes. Yes, I can. 2 MS. KAUR: Yes. 3 HEARING EXAMINER: Hallelujah. Okay. So 4 we have 17(a), I believe. 17(b). (b)? Oh, no, 5 it'd be (c). Okay. (d). (e). (f). Okay. All 6 right. So, Ms. Sodhi, you saw those pictures and 7 you said you took those photos? 8 MS. SODHI: Yes, I did, and I was able to 9 get a timestamp on them as well. They were taken 10 on January 6 of this year. 11 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. Okay, all 12 right. And those photos, do they depict -- are 13 they accurate and reflect the property as it 14 exists today? 15 MS. SODHI: Yes. 16 HEARING EXAMINER: Minus, of course, the 17 fact that -- a lot of green now. 18 MS. SODHI: Yes, definitely. 19 HEARING EXAMINER: So no changes to the 20 pictures that you presented? 21 MS. SODHI: No. 22 HEARING EXAMINER: No improvements, okay. 23 With regards to the location of the daycare, can 24 you explain to me where it is and how large it is? 25 Because you didn't -- there's no measurements of</p>

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

6 (21 to 24)

<p>21</p> <p>1 the interior, or photographs. 2 MS. SODHI: Got it. So it is the 3 complete lower half, so the basement area of the 4 home. I might not have the exact measurements, 5 but I know it is well beyond 900 square feet. 6 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. And is that 7 because you've measured it, or ... 8 MS. SODHI: We initially measured it just 9 to see if we could even do the -- file the 10 expansion for 12 children, and I knew that there 11 had to be a certain number of square footage 12 there, and I know to have nine, I believe it was, 13 like, close to -- I'm sorry, to have 12 children, 14 it was close to 8 or 900 square foot, and I know 15 we were beyond that. So that's when I decided to 16 file the -- 17 HEARING EXAMINER: All right. Because 18 according to the tax records, it says 650 square 19 feet, and I believe that's what staff said. So if 20 you can provide the dimensions -- 21 MS. SODHI: Okay. 22 HEARING EXAMINER: -- that would be 23 great. I think you have -- I'm going to pull 24 up ... 25 MS. SODHI: And another question, I'm</p>	<p>23</p> <p>1 MS. SODHI: Got it. 2 HEARING EXAMINER: Also, do you have any 3 interior photos? I didn't see any interior photos 4 or any photos of the access to the daycare. All 5 we have is the play area, the front yard play 6 area. 7 MS. SODHI: I have some personally. 8 I haven't -- I don't believe I was asked to 9 provide any for the interior, but I can definitely 10 do so. 11 HEARING EXAMINER: Yes, if you could do 12 that, and if you could also, since I don't have 13 any photos of the entrance, the access to the 14 daycare itself, because all I see in photographs 15 is the front door to the main dwelling, the play 16 yard, and gates. 17 MS. SODHI: Okay. 18 HEARING EXAMINER: But according to your 19 escape plan, it shows some kind of a path. So 20 could you describe the access, how somebody 21 would -- how the children are going to get from 22 the drop-off area on the driveway to the daycare 23 center, just what kind of pathway is it and what 24 side of the house is it on and where's the, the 25 door? What's the door? If you could describe</p>
<p>22</p> <p>1 sorry. So when I do do that, do I not include the 2 bathroom/closet area? Is it just the open space 3 that we're considering for the dimensions, or is 4 it everything that's down there? 5 HEARING EXAMINER: Just the open space. 6 MS. SODHI: Okay, got it. 7 HEARING EXAMINER: Because you've already 8 marked on your emergency escape plan -- is really 9 all that I have depicting the interior, the play 10 area, the napping station, the bathroom, the 11 diaper changing. 12 MS. SODHI: Got it. 13 HEARING EXAMINER: But there's no 14 measurements. 15 MS. SODHI: Okay. 16 HEARING EXAMINER: So you will get that. 17 But we will discuss at the end what you need to 18 provide. The record will be left open for a set 19 number of days and during that period, you can 20 submit those documents. They need to be submitted 21 before the record closes. But we'll discuss that 22 at the end. 23 MS. SODHI: Got it. 24 HEARING EXAMINER: So it's the square 25 footage of the basement.</p>	<p>24</p> <p>1 that. 2 MS. SODHI: Absolutely. So if you're 3 entering or facing the house, onto the left of the 4 house, there is a pathway made of -- it's -- 5 I believe it's just cement, and it goes through 6 the yard, and then after that there are stairs. 7 That gate that you see where it says "Entrance to 8 the center", there are stairs down there which 9 then -- they kind of turn around to the back of 10 the house and then there's another pathway, and to 11 the right is the door to the basement. 12 HEARING EXAMINER: And that's on the rear 13 of -- 14 MS. SODHI: Yeah. 15 HEARING EXAMINER: You don't enter on the 16 side of the house? 17 MS. SODHI: No. It is behind the house. 18 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. And what type 19 of pathway is it? Concrete or stepping stones? 20 MS. SODHI: No, concrete. 21 MS. KAUR: Concrete. 22 HEARING EXAMINER: Concrete all the way 23 around? 24 MS. SODHI: All the way around, yes. 25 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. And what type</p>

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

7 (25 to 28)

<p>25</p> <p>1 of lighting do you have along that path, because 2 if people come in in the winter time and it's 3 still dark, what kind of lighting do you have and 4 where's it located? 5 MS. SODHI: So the lighting is located 6 onto the side of the house, so as you're going 7 downstairs, on the pathway, there are solar lights 8 that are put on on the side of the house, and then 9 once you get down, downstairs to the other 10 pathway, there are solar lights on the fence as 11 well. And then there is one light right by the 12 door as well. 13 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. Does the stairs 14 have railing? Is there a railing along the 15 stairs? 16 MS. SODHI: No. 17 HEARING EXAMINER: Is it -- what type of 18 grade is it to the backyard? Is it level, is it 19 steep, is it moderate? 20 MS. SODHI: It's not steep. It's -- it 21 was -- I'm not sure exactly of the definition, but 22 it wasn't quite steep. I remember it even 23 being -- the stairs didn't have to be really big. 24 So we were able to easily put stairs onto the side 25 of the house.</p>	<p>27</p> <p>1 MS. SODHI: No. No-one that meets at the 2 driveway. 3 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. How big is the 4 driveway? 5 MS. SODHI: I might not -- I don't have 6 the square footage of the driveway, but it is 7 a two-car driveway. 8 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. With regards to 9 staggering the drop-off, what -- do you understand 10 that the children -- you can only have two cars 11 every 15 minutes? 12 MS. SODHI: Absolutely. We have 13 a schedule for that as well. 14 HEARING EXAMINER: You do have a schedule 15 for that? You have an existing schedule, or you 16 will have a schedule that you've created for this? 17 MS. SODHI: No, actually, before the 12. 18 For the eight, we actually have a schedule for 19 that, and I did make a point where you said we 20 need to amend our contract. We haven't -- it's 21 not in the contract, but when a child or a family 22 signs up, they do get an allotted time slot to 23 come in and drop off and pick up. 24 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. And -- because 25 I was looking at your transportation schedule, and</p>
<p>26</p> <p>1 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. And what type 2 of door do you have to get in? Is it a single 3 door, double door? 4 MS. SODHI: It's a single sliding door. 5 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. You will 6 provide pictures of the side and the entrance as 7 well? 8 MS. SODHI: Got it. 9 HEARING EXAMINER: Great. Thank you. 10 With regards to your, your -- number of children 11 is up to 12, and the drop-off and pick-up 12 currently, is that on the driveway? 13 MS. SODHI: No. Parents come downstairs. 14 Well, if we're talk -- is this pre-COVID or COVID 15 time? 16 HEARING EXAMINER: We're just talking 17 about when you are going to expand to 12, where do 18 parents drop off their children? Where do staff 19 meet parents to get their children? 20 MS. SODHI: So it would be the entrance 21 of the daycare itself, so in the back. So they 22 take the pathway, come down the stairs, and they 23 drop off their children at the door. 24 HEARING EXAMINER: Oh, so there's no 25 staff that meets the parents at the driveway?</p>	<p>28</p> <p>1 it likes like you have three children within 2 a 15-minute or three drop-offs within a 15-minute 3 period. That wouldn't apply. One would have to 4 be, you know, to another period, unless two of 5 those children were siblings. 6 MS. SODHI: That's actually how it is. 7 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. Just so that 8 you understand that you can't have three 9 drop-offs. But if two of those three that are in 10 the 15-minute period come in one car, then it 11 complies. 12 MS. SODHI: Got it. 13 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. And it appears 14 to look like that because -- and you're just 15 saying that they were siblings. That would 16 qualify. And staff, the non-resident staff -- is 17 that you? 18 MS. SODHI: I'm the non-resident staff, 19 yes. 20 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. And you will be 21 parking or -- I saw one where you were taking the 22 bus or parking in the garage. 23 MS. SODHI: Yes, I park in the garage. 24 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. All right. 25 That's fine. Can you just -- let's talk about the</p>

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

8 (29 to 32)

<p>29</p> <p>1 fence.</p> <p>2 MS. SODHI: Yes.</p> <p>3 HEARING EXAMINER: The fence. The</p> <p>4 existing fence right now I see is white and it's,</p> <p>5 like, under five feet. And then you have -- let</p> <p>6 me see if I can get that.</p> <p>7 MS. SODHI: That's been pulled up. Yes,</p> <p>8 you can see the fence right now.</p> <p>9 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. I'm actually</p> <p>10 going to go to staff's report. I mean, right now</p> <p>11 I have 17(f). Can you see 17(f)?</p> <p>12 MS. SODHI: Yes.</p> <p>13 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. And that's the</p> <p>14 board -- what is that material?</p> <p>15 MS. SODHI: On the fence, the taller</p> <p>16 fence that we see right here?</p> <p>17 HEARING EXAMINER: That was the existing</p> <p>18 fence; correct?</p> <p>19 MS. SODHI: Yes.</p> <p>20 HEARING EXAMINER: And is there a permit</p> <p>21 for that fence?</p> <p>22 MS. SODHI: There was. This fence was</p> <p>23 put on a long time ago. So I have asked my dad to</p> <p>24 see if he was able to come up with the permit.</p> <p>25 But I was, I believe --</p>	<p>31</p> <p>1 the -- where would the gate be? How would you --</p> <p>2 I mean, you say you have a contract. Do you have</p> <p>3 a plan for that?</p> <p>4 MS. SODHI: So they are -- once I've</p> <p>5 signed the contract, they will be getting the</p> <p>6 permits for that. That's part of their thing. So</p> <p>7 when you ask for the gate, if you can scroll down</p> <p>8 to, yes, this picture right here.</p> <p>9 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay.</p> <p>10 MS. SODHI: Yes, that right there. And</p> <p>11 what they plan to do is completely I guess take</p> <p>12 this fence off, the shorter fence, and then change</p> <p>13 it to the same height and material as the taller</p> <p>14 fence. And where we see where the gates -- it</p> <p>15 says "gate", they will put the actual fenced gate</p> <p>16 there, and it will be the same height as the rest</p> <p>17 of the fence as well.</p> <p>18 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. So it will be</p> <p>19 secure?</p> <p>20 MS. SODHI: Yes, absolutely.</p> <p>21 HEARING EXAMINER: I was a little</p> <p>22 concerned seeing the wire wrappings on the gate,</p> <p>23 and, kind of short. But anyway, the deal is that</p> <p>24 they're going to bring it out and place is exactly</p> <p>25 where the 3.5-foot fence is, but it's going to</p>
<p>30</p> <p>1 MS. KAUR: We do have a permit.</p> <p>2 MS. SODHI: Yes, we do have a permit.</p> <p>3 I just don't think Dad knows where it would be or</p> <p>4 if he has a notice of it or not.</p> <p>5 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. I'm going to</p> <p>6 pull up staff's report. They have color photos</p> <p>7 that maybe can -- I don't know what page it is.</p> <p>8 Okay. So here we have the front of the house.</p> <p>9 Let me make this -- okay. Can you see that?</p> <p>10 MS. SODHI: Yes.</p> <p>11 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. So the shorter</p> <p>12 fence, is that -- that's what needs to be</p> <p>13 replaced --</p> <p>14 MS. SODHI: Yes.</p> <p>15 HEARING EXAMINER: -- according to what</p> <p>16 I'm reading from staff; correct?</p> <p>17 MS. SODHI: Absolutely, yes.</p> <p>18 HEARING EXAMINER: To install the same</p> <p>19 type of fence that's already there?</p> <p>20 MS. SODHI: Yes.</p> <p>21 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay.</p> <p>22 MS. SODHI: He already had the contract</p> <p>23 in place to get it replaced with the same material</p> <p>24 and height as the other.</p> <p>25 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. And what about</p>	<p>32</p> <p>1 match the existing 5.5-foot fence, and you're</p> <p>2 going to have a basically 5.5-foot gate; correct?</p> <p>3 MS. SODHI: Correct, yes.</p> <p>4 HEARING EXAMINER: And will a new gate be</p> <p>5 put on the back side, on the entrance, or will it</p> <p>6 be the existing fence? Existing gate. Or -- let</p> <p>7 me see if I can ... I think that -- let's see.</p> <p>8 Will you be replacing the gate to the stairway to</p> <p>9 the daycare entrance?</p> <p>10 MS. SODHI: So what we're doing now is if</p> <p>11 you can see the fence all the way to the back --</p> <p>12 okay. So I see that.</p> <p>13 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay.</p> <p>14 MS. SODHI: This gate is attached to the</p> <p>15 fence on the left-hand side. We're actually going</p> <p>16 to fence the entire property out all the way down</p> <p>17 to the -- in the back, so that we wouldn't even</p> <p>18 need this gate. Once a child is in, they're</p> <p>19 securely within the premises and there's no way of</p> <p>20 leaving unless they go out from that same gate.</p> <p>21 So we'll take -- and we're actually just enclosing</p> <p>22 the whole property. And they will get permits for</p> <p>23 all of this.</p> <p>24 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. So right now,</p> <p>25 so right now, that fence I'm looking at -- what is</p>

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

9 (33 to 36)

<p>33</p> <p>1 this, 17(d) -- you're saying that that black 2 fence, I mean, that black gate -- 3 MS. SODHI: Yes. 4 HEARING EXAMINER: -- is going to 5 disappear, and you are going to fence in the 6 entire yard down to the rear. That metal fence 7 there, is that yours or is that what's being 8 replaced? 9 MS. KAUR: No, that's next-door neighbor. 10 MS. SODHI: Yes, and it goes back -- but 11 it does -- I guess the picture, the way it shows, 12 it shows the next-door neighbor's fence. But we 13 have the same going back into ours. Ours is 14 wooden, but it does connect from there and it goes 15 all -- and it wraps around. But now this fence 16 will then meet at the end of this, at the end of 17 the metal one. 18 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. So, let's see. 19 I'm going to pull up -- this is Exhibit 14, just 20 for clarity. Okay. 14. Okay. So this is what 21 you provided for the outline of the 22 neighborhood -- I mean, not the neighborhood; your 23 property. 24 MS. SODHI: Right. 25 HEARING EXAMINER: As you can see,</p>	<p>35</p> <p>1 MS. SODHI: Got it. 2 HEARING EXAMINER: So don't worry about 3 the gate at the top of the steps. So that's 4 Exhibit 14 you will have to amend. 5 MS. SODHI: If I can ask a question here. 6 The gate, does that have to be five feet? Because 7 maybe I'm not exactly sure. I know that it's 8 going to be a tall gate, but it may be a 4.5-foot, 9 a 5-feet -- I don't think I have specifics. So 10 I don't know if the -- 11 HEARING EXAMINER: I don't think that it 12 has to be 5.5 feet. It just has to be secure and 13 stable. 14 MS. SODHI: Okay. 15 HEARING EXAMINER: And that might be 16 a permitting issue in terms of whether you can, 17 you know -- whether it can be that way in the 18 front yard. So any other questions on what I need 19 for this exhibit? 20 MS. SODHI: I think I'm clear on that. 21 Is there going to be an email afterwards just to, 22 I guess, for everything that we spoke of or what 23 needs to be submitted? 24 HEARING EXAMINER: We'll talk about it 25 all at the end.</p>
<p>34</p> <p>1 I don't have a very clear copy at all. All 2 I have, what's pretty clear, is the dash line, 3 which I'm assuming is the fence. 4 MS. SODHI: Yes. 5 HEARING EXAMINER: But everything else, 6 as you can see, is very faint. So I'm going to 7 ask you -- I wish if we were in a courtroom, you 8 could make these changes right there to update 9 this with the proposed new fence and gate, because 10 this definitely does not depict that, what you 11 just described. 12 MS. SODHI: Okay. Can you tell me the 13 number again? 14 HEARING EXAMINER: Yes. 15 MS. SODHI: You said 14, Exhibit -- 16 HEARING EXAMINER: 14. And it can be 17 hand-drawn, but I do need you to make it darker so 18 that I -- it's very faint. 19 MS. SODHI: It is, yeah. 20 HEARING EXAMINER: So if you need to 21 redraw it, but reflecting the change that you just 22 described, which is enclosing the entire backyard, 23 installing a 5.5-foot gate at the front and 24 showing that the access to the daycare there, it 25 is fenced in, the area is fenced in.</p>	<p>36</p> <p>1 MS. SODHI: Okay. All right, got it. 2 HEARING EXAMINER: With regards to the 3 easement, have you obtained the revocable 4 agreement with the county, started the process, or 5 what are you doing with that? 6 MS. SODHI: With the easement? 7 HEARING EXAMINER: Uh-huh. 8 MS. SODHI: Uh -- 9 HEARING EXAMINER: Staff report, and that 10 you have a -- your fence is on a storm easement. 11 MS. SODHI: Oh, okay. 12 HEARING EXAMINER: And in order to put 13 something on there, you have to -- the county has 14 to have access, and I believe that if they -- they 15 will grant you that with the understanding that it 16 can be taken down in the event of an emergency. 17 But you have to have an agreement. Any approval 18 will be conditioned on you producing that 19 agreement from the county. Have you started that 20 process or you -- I mean, I know you just got the 21 staff report not too long ago. 22 MS. SODHI: Yes. I have not started that 23 process, but I have spoken to Ms. Katherine, who 24 did speak to someone I think in planning and 25 permitting, and they said that they would be --</p>

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

10 (37 to 40)

<p>37</p> <p>1 that it is a doable thing. So once we are 2 approved, then to start up the process of getting 3 the permit for that. 4 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. Just so that 5 you understand, any approval, you wouldn't be able 6 to start without proof that you have obtained 7 that, because I'm going to ask you to submit that 8 as part of the record so that it's in the file. 9 MS. SODHI: Got it. 10 HEARING EXAMINER: So that you have that. 11 Okay? 12 MS. SODHI: Okay. 13 HEARING EXAMINER: And certainly if you 14 find that there's going to be issues with that, 15 you would have to come back and say, "We have 16 issues with that," and then if you need to modify 17 it again. But again, just so we're clear, any 18 approval will be conditional on obtaining that and 19 that being part of the record. 20 MS. SODHI: Got it. 21 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. With regards to 22 parking, on-street parking. Do you have -- is -- 23 do you have unrestricted parking allowed in front 24 of your house? 25 MS. SODHI: Do we have any restricted</p>	<p>39</p> <p>1 MS. SODHI: Yeah. 2 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. And no sign. 3 I don't see any request for a sign, and you 4 understand that no sign will be permitted? 5 MS. SODHI: Yes. 6 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. With regards to 7 the affidavit of compliance from the co-owner, 8 I understand, and I'm sorry to hear, that your -- 9 Ms. Kaur, your family has been exposed to COVID. 10 I hope everybody remains healthy. I'm really 11 sorry to hear that. So I understand that you 12 can't get his affidavit notarized, because what 13 you submitted is not notarized. So if you need 14 time to get that, that's fine. 15 MS. SODHI: Thank you. Appreciate that. 16 HEARING EXAMINER: Fingers crossed that 17 everybody makes it through the quarantine period. 18 MS. SODHI: Thank you. 19 HEARING EXAMINER: I don't have any other 20 questions that I -- I don't have any other 21 questions. Do you have any further questions, 22 Ms. Sodhi, and then I'll ask Ms. Kaur? 23 MS. SODHI: No, I think I'm pretty clear 24 on these, thank you. 25 HEARING EXAMINER: Ms. Kaur?</p>
<p>38</p> <p>1 parking, you said? I'm sorry, I didn't get that. 2 HEARING EXAMINER: Unrestricted. I mean, 3 do you have any restrictions of parking on the 4 house? 5 MS. SODHI: No, no. 6 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay, yeah. And how 7 many spaces do you believe you have? How many 8 cars can you fit in front of your house? 9 MS. SODHI: So, not the driveway; we're 10 talking on the street? 11 HEARING EXAMINER: The street, yes. 12 MS. SODHI: Just the street? Geez. I'm 13 thinking -- we can easily, on just one side of the 14 street, have five cars parked at one time. 15 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. With regards to 16 the bicycle requirement, I understand you've asked 17 for a waiver of the design. 18 MS. SODHI: Yes. 19 HEARING EXAMINER: And staff supported 20 that. I just wanted to make sure. But you have 21 space on the side of the house if someone does -- 22 or inside the garage if somebody does -- 23 MS. SODHI: Absolutely. 24 HEARING EXAMINER: But you did ask for 25 a waiver?</p>	<p>40</p> <p>1 MS. KAUR: No, thank you. 2 HEARING EXAMINER: Do you have your 3 childcare license? 4 MS. KAUR: It is downstairs in the 5 basement, so ... 6 HEARING EXAMINER: We'll just add that to 7 the list, if you could just send it so we can make 8 it part of the record. Again, knowing that you 9 will file for one that allows you to have up to 12 10 children, whatever the state requirements are. 11 I'm going to just throw it out there. 12 Based on my attendee list, I don't think there's 13 anybody there that wants to ask a question, but 14 I will raise it for this moment: is there anybody 15 in the audience who wishes to be sworn in or give 16 testimony or to ask questions? 17 Okay. I don't think we have anybody. 18 Oh, one more question. This is 19 a full-time daycare, correct, not half-day 20 programs? It's full day? 21 MS. SODHI: Full day. 22 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. Just making 23 sure that we have morning and afternoon drop-off 24 and pick-up. 25 MS. SODHI: Yes.</p>

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

11 (41 to 44)

<p>41</p> <p>1 HEARING EXAMINER: I just wanted to 2 clarify that. Okay. So at this point, let's go 3 over the list of what -- tell me what you have on 4 your list that I need from you. It might be 5 easier, since you were taking notes while I was 6 speaking. 7 MS. SODHI: I was. So just to go by, so 8 we need the easement for the fence, just to know 9 that we can get a permit for that. I did have 10 a question regarding this. Since when we spoke to 11 the contractor that is going to put in the 12 fence -- now, we are paying so that they can also 13 get the permits. It will be coming from him. He 14 would get the permits on that. The only thing is 15 that he won't be able to start with us for the 16 next four or five weeks, is what we've been told, 17 because of COVID and the backlog that they have on 18 material. I don't know -- I know that you said 19 for this to remain open, we have to get everything 20 in within the deadline. I don't know what 21 deadline that may be, but I did want to just put 22 that out there as well, that we are going to just 23 have to wait for our contractor to start, you 24 know, begin work when they have everything. 25 HEARING EXAMINER: Right.</p>	<p>43</p> <p>1 Okay. I'm just going to write that down. Thank 2 you. Got it, okay. 3 Let me see. We said the enclosed back 4 of the yard, the gate. Also you requested another 5 drop-off slot for the 12 children or for the 18 6 children, or was that just a question? I wasn't 7 sure. 8 HEARING EXAMINER: No, that was 9 a question. Where the children will be dropped 10 off safely on the driveway. 11 MS. SODHI: Got it. 12 HEARING EXAMINER: As opposed to off the 13 street. Where you need to have the space -- so 14 sufficient space on the driveway so that the 15 children are on the driveway and not off the 16 street. It's a safety issue. I was just 17 clarifying. I mean, it looks like you have plenty 18 of room there, but that's where you were doing it, 19 dropping them off there. 20 MS. SODHI: Got it. 21 HEARING EXAMINER: And the parents are 22 bringing them to the entrance in the rear. 23 MS. SODHI: Yes, absolutely. And then 24 there was also you wanted to get the dimensions of 25 the open space alone inside the daycare.</p>
<p>42</p> <p>1 Understandable. Okay. 2 MS. SODHI: Got it. And then also you 3 needed us to send in our current daycare license? 4 HEARING EXAMINER: Correct. 5 MS. SODHI: And affidavit for Dad. 6 Mum's, I was able to go online and do. Okay. 7 Exhibit 14. If I -- I think I will 8 probably start over and try to make it darker and 9 send that in, with the enclosed fence that we are 10 proposing, and the gate that we -- the -- that we 11 propose to put on there. 12 HEARING EXAMINER: And can you also, 13 looking at 14, while you're doing it, just the 14 measurements from the fence to the side of the 15 house, the front of the house to the front 16 sidewalk. The -- 17 MS. SODHI: So just to make it clear, do 18 you want the measurements of the fence, how, like, 19 long the fence is? 20 HEARING EXAMINER: Well, yes. I mean, 21 it's going to go along the property line from the 22 front to the back. I'm just talking about from 23 the house. What's the measurement from the house 24 to the fence. 25 MS. SODHI: Got it, on both -- got it.</p>	<p>44</p> <p>1 HEARING EXAMINER: Yes. Right now, it 2 says 650, but your testimony is that it's larger, 3 or closer to 900 square feet. 4 MS. SODHI: But I could be -- I think 5 when we did that, we did measure the bathroom and 6 the closet and I think we were all able to put 7 that. But I will just get that though, and 8 I could be completely wrong. So I will get those 9 dimensions to you. 10 HEARING EXAMINER: Thank you. 11 MS. SODHI: Of course. And then there 12 were pictures of the entrance to the daycare, so 13 the door entrance and also the stairway and how it 14 kind of wraps around. 15 HEARING EXAMINER: Great. 16 MS. SODHI: Yes, got it. Inside the 17 center. Stairs. Open space. 18 HEARING EXAMINER: And certainly if after 19 we end this hearing, something comes up, I can 20 always have Nana email you while the record is 21 open. 22 MS. SODHI: Got it. 23 HEARING EXAMINER: So let's decide -- 24 with this, you said probably two weeks before you 25 can get the affidavit of compliance from your</p>

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

12 (45 to 48)

<p>45</p> <p>1 father. So we would leave the record open for at 2 least that. And certainly if you got it 3 earlier -- but we do have to set a time. 4 MS. SODHI: Okay. 5 HEARING EXAMINER: Let me get my 6 calendar. Hold on for one second. 7 MS. SODHI: Sure. 8 HEARING EXAMINER: So we are June 6. 9 Well, first of all, the court reporter needs at 10 least 10 working days. Is that correct, 11 Mr. Utterback? 12 COURT REPORTER: That's correct. 10 13 business days. 14 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. So do you think 15 sometime during the week of the 20th? 16 MS. SODHI: Yes, I think if everything 17 goes well, if Dad stays healthy enough, 16th of 18 July will be his 14th day of quarantine, so we're 19 definitely praying on that, and I believe he will 20 be able to leave out and go get it notarized by 21 the end of the week. 22 HEARING EXAMINER: So you want to give it 23 till the 22nd, 23rd? You tell me. Because -- and 24 certainly if you find that you need it to be 25 extended, you just let me know. But --</p>	<p>47</p> <p>1 HEARING EXAMINER: She would be your 2 point of contact. 3 MS. SODHI: Got it. 4 HEARING EXAMINER: And you have all of 5 her information. And if there's any -- certainly 6 any changes, all you need to do is ask, and 7 Ms. Johnson will get that to me or put me on the 8 CC as well, because whatever is -- whatever comes 9 to me needs to be part of the record, so if you 10 all are just having conversations back and forth, 11 I don't necessarily need to be on that. But if 12 it's documentation, evidence that you need to 13 submit, I should be -- you can send it to me as 14 well. But you go through Nana. 15 MS. SODHI: Got it. 16 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. Does the court 17 reporter have any questions and anybody -- 18 clarifying spellings or any information you heard 19 that you need someone to spell it for you or 20 explain? 21 COURT REPORTER: Yeah, so I think I can 22 get the spellings off the exhibits. I did go 23 through them and heard some familiar names and 24 places. I just do have a couple of questions. 25 First, no rush on the transcript; correct?</p>
<p>46</p> <p>1 MS. SODHI: I appreciate it. If we can 2 get the 24th, then I will definitely send it in 3 before if he's fine and he's strong enough that we 4 will send him out there. 5 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. So we'll leave 6 the record open until Friday, July 24th for you to 7 submit the information that we just listed that 8 I've requested, that we've talked about. And the 9 record will close on the close of business on the 10 24th. Close of business, 5 o'clock. Of course, 11 we're still in COVID, so you need to email 12 everything, but you also need to put a hard copy 13 in the mail to -- yeah. 14 MS. SODHI: I did not know that. Got it. 15 HEARING EXAMINER: Because staff at this 16 moment, hopefully -- I mean, we just don't know 17 when we're going to be back in the office. We do 18 have staff that goes in for limited periods once 19 or twice a week, but it's a very limited period, 20 to get the mail and stuff like that. 21 MS. SODHI: I just wanted to know, who 22 will I be mailing it out to? Do I ask Ms. Johnson 23 that? 24 HEARING EXAMINER: Yes. 25 MS. SODHI: Okay, got it.</p>	<p>48</p> <p>1 HEARING EXAMINER: Correct. No rush. 2 COURT REPORTER: All right. 3 HEARING EXAMINER: But hopefully before 4 the 24th. Needs to be -- 5 COURT REPORTER: All right. 6 HEARING EXAMINER: You can do it before 7 the 24th; correct? 8 COURT REPORTER: Oh, yeah. Absolutely. 9 I just had to double-check the calendar. 10 HEARING EXAMINER: Because the record 11 closes. 12 COURT REPORTER: All right. And also, 13 Ms. Citaramanis, could you send me a copy of the 14 recording? 15 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. 16 COURT REPORTER: And I can send you my 17 email through the chat. 18 HEARING EXAMINER: Or you can send it to 19 Nana. 20 COURT REPORTER: Oh, send it to Nana? 21 HEARING EXAMINER: Yes. All right. It's 22 easier that way. 23 COURT REPORTER: Just send me the 24 recording. 25 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. That it?</p>

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

13 (49 to 52)

<p>49</p> <p>1 COURT REPORTER: I think that's it. 2 HEARING EXAMINER: Ms. Kaur, do you have 3 any questions or clarifications? 4 MS. KAUR: You're asking me, ma'am? 5 HEARING EXAMINER: Yes. 6 MS. KAUR: No. Thank you. 7 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. So before we 8 adjourn -- not closing the record. I'm accepting 9 all the exhibits that we have right now in the 10 record, which, according to my exhibit list, we're 11 up to Exhibit 35. Of course, we will add to that 12 the information that you submit before the record 13 closes. So I'm going to accept into the record 14 all of those exhibits, and then the exhibits that 15 are submitted before the 24th, close of business 16 on the 24th, will also be added and entered into 17 the record. 18 Okay. With that, if we have no other 19 questions, and I don't see any new people, so we 20 will adjourn for today. It is 10:39. And I wish 21 everybody health and happiness. 22 MS. KAUR: Thank you. 23 MS. SODHI: Thank you for your time, 24 everyone. 25 HEARING EXAMINER: Okay. Take care,</p>	<p>51</p> <p>1 CERTIFICATE OF TRANSCRIBER 2 I, JADE K. KING, do hereby certify that the 3 foregoing transcript is a true and correct record of 4 the recorded proceedings; that said proceedings were 5 transcribed to the best of my ability from the audio 6 recording and supporting information; and that I am 7 neither counsel for, related to, nor employed by any 8 of the parties to this case and have no interest, 9 financial or otherwise, in its outcome. 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 Jade K. King 18 19 July 14, 2020 20 21 22 23 24 25</p>
<p>50</p> <p>1 everybody. Bye-bye. 2 MR. FREY: Thank you very much. 3 (Off the record at 10:39 a.m.) 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25</p>	

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

14

A			
<b>aaert</b>	40:6, 49:11	28:24, 32:11,	<b>another</b>
2:9	<b>added</b>	32:16, 32:23,	21:25, 24:10,
<b>ability</b>	49:16	33:15, 34:1,	28:4, 43:4
51:5	<b>addition</b>	35:25, 36:1,	<b>answer</b>
<b>able</b>	11:24	44:6, 45:9,	11:8
20:8, 25:24,	<b>address</b>	47:4, 47:6,	<b>answering</b>
29:24, 37:5,	5:9, 9:5, 10:4	47:10, 48:2,	9:18
41:15, 42:6,	<b>adjourn</b>	48:5, 48:12,	<b>any</b>
44:6, 45:20	49:8, 49:20	48:21, 49:9,	7:5, 10:4,
<b>about</b>	<b>administrative</b>	49:14	10:5, 12:22,
12:24, 15:4,	1:1, 3:3	<b>allotted</b>	12:23, 13:8,
18:3, 19:23,	<b>adopt</b>	27:22	13:24, 15:23,
26:17, 28:25,	15:5, 15:10	<b>allow</b>	17:13, 23:2,
30:25, 35:2,	<b>affidavit</b>	5:15	23:3, 23:4,
35:24, 42:22,	39:7, 39:12,	<b>allowed</b>	23:9, 23:13,
46:8	42:5, 44:25	37:23	35:18, 36:17,
<b>absolutely</b>	<b>affirmed</b>	<b>allows</b>	37:5, 37:17,
6:19, 24:2,	8:22, 8:24	40:9	37:25, 38:3,
27:12, 30:17,	<b>affirming</b>	<b>alone</b>	39:3, 39:19,
31:20, 38:23,	11:14	43:25	39:20, 39:21,
43:23, 48:8	<b>after</b>	<b>along</b>	47:5, 47:6,
<b>accept</b>	24:6, 44:18	25:1, 25:14,	47:17, 47:18,
15:10, 49:13	<b>afternoon</b>	42:21	49:3, 49:19,
<b>accepting</b>	14:5, 14:7,	<b>already</b>	51:7
49:8	40:23	13:21, 17:18,	<b>anybody</b>
<b>access</b>	<b>afterwards</b>	22:7, 30:19,	7:14, 8:17,
23:4, 23:13,	35:21	30:22	40:13, 40:14,
23:20, 34:24,	<b>again</b>	<b>also</b>	40:17, 47:17
36:14	19:22, 34:13,	3:13, 5:8,	<b>anyway</b>
<b>according</b>	37:17, 40:8	7:10, 11:19,	31:23
5:11, 21:18,	<b>ago</b>	14:3, 14:22,	<b>appealed</b>
23:18, 30:15,	29:23, 36:21	23:2, 23:12,	5:20
49:10	<b>agreement</b>	41:12, 42:2,	<b>appears</b>
<b>account</b>	2:8, 14:23,	42:12, 43:4,	28:13
5:12	36:4, 36:17,	43:24, 44:13,	<b>applicant</b>
<b>accurate</b>	36:19	46:12, 48:12,	1:6, 3:7, 6:8,
20:13	<b>ahead</b>	49:16	6:12, 6:14,
<b>actual</b>	8:18, 17:17,	<b>always</b>	13:5, 14:15,
11:22, 31:15	17:19, 19:12	15:23, 18:12,	14:22
<b>actually</b>	<b>all</b>	44:20	<b>application</b>
11:9, 18:20,	7:11, 8:4,	<b>amend</b>	5:7, 7:17,
27:17, 27:18,	8:11, 9:13,	11:21, 13:13,	9:25, 10:5,
28:6, 29:9,	16:7, 16:21,	27:20, 35:4	15:14, 17:4
32:15, 32:21	17:10, 19:1,	<b>amended</b>	<b>apply</b>
<b>add</b>	20:5, 20:11,	14:3	28:3
13:2, 13:12,	21:17, 22:9,	<b>amending</b>	<b>appreciate</b>
	23:4, 23:14,	11:20	39:15, 46:1
	24:22, 24:24,	<b>amendments</b>	<b>approval</b>
		10:5, 15:5	11:17, 12:3,

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

15

36:17, 37:5, 37:18 <b>approved</b> 11:17, 37:2 <b>approximately</b> 5:4, 15:16, 17:21 <b>area</b> 21:3, 22:2, 22:10, 23:5, 23:6, 23:22, 34:25 <b>around</b> 24:9, 24:23, 24:24, 33:15, 44:14 <b>ask</b> 5:22, 7:6, 9:17, 16:1, 16:8, 17:11, 17:19, 31:7, 34:7, 35:5, 37:7, 38:24, 39:22, 40:13, 40:16, 46:22, 47:6 <b>asked</b> 11:21, 23:8, 29:23, 38:16 <b>asking</b> 16:25, 49:4 <b>assigning</b> 13:15 <b>assistant</b> 7:9 <b>assuming</b> 8:3, 34:3 <b>attached</b> 32:14 <b>attachment</b> 13:14 <b>attende</b> 40:12 <b>audience</b> 40:15 <b>audio</b> 51:5 <b>avenue</b> 5:9, 9:8	<b>aware</b> 17:7 <hr/> <b>B</b> <hr/> <b>b</b> 20:4 <b>back</b> 7:25, 17:12, 18:21, 19:6, 19:21, 24:9, 26:21, 32:5, 32:11, 32:17, 33:10, 33:13, 37:15, 42:22, 43:3, 46:17, 47:10 <b>backlog</b> 41:17 <b>backyard</b> 25:18, 34:22 <b>based</b> 12:3, 40:12 <b>basement</b> 16:15, 21:3, 22:25, 24:11, 40:5 <b>basically</b> 11:14, 14:5, 32:2 <b>bathroom</b> 22:2, 22:10, 44:5 <b>bear</b> 18:11 <b>because</b> 8:9, 8:13, 9:14, 9:15, 11:22, 15:23, 16:17, 19:7, 20:25, 21:7, 21:17, 22:7, 23:14, 25:1, 27:24, 28:14, 34:9, 35:6, 37:7, 39:12, 41:17, 45:23, 46:15, 47:8, 48:10	<b>been</b> 8:22, 8:24, 9:13, 10:18, 17:18, 18:24, 19:1, 19:3, 29:7, 39:9, 41:16 <b>before</b> 1:11, 2:1, 2:8, 7:3, 22:21, 27:17, 44:24, 46:3, 48:3, 48:6, 49:7, 49:12, 49:15 <b>begin</b> 41:24 <b>behalf</b> 3:7 <b>behind</b> 24:17 <b>being</b> 7:22, 7:24, 25:23, 33:7, 37:19 <b>believe</b> 5:24, 11:20, 15:14, 17:23, 18:15, 18:23, 19:4, 20:4, 21:12, 21:19, 23:8, 24:5, 29:25, 36:14, 38:7, 45:19 <b>besides</b> 8:18 <b>best</b> 51:5 <b>beyond</b> 21:5, 21:15 <b>bicycle</b> 38:16 <b>big</b> 16:16, 25:23, 27:3 <b>bit</b> 6:17, 19:6 <b>black</b> 33:1, 33:2	<b>blair-takoma</b> 5:12 <b>block</b> 5:10 <b>board</b> 11:14, 29:14 <b>both</b> 8:20, 42:25 <b>break</b> 19:20 <b>bring</b> 19:24, 31:24 <b>bringing</b> 43:22 <b>bus</b> 28:22 <b>business</b> 45:13, 46:9, 46:10, 49:15 <b>button</b> 7:23 <b>buttons</b> 8:8 <b>bye-bye</b> 50:1 <hr/> <b>C</b> <hr/> <b>c</b> 20:5 <b>calendar</b> 45:6, 48:9 <b>calling</b> 5:6 <b>camera</b> 6:9, 6:17, 7:21, 18:21, 19:12, 19:16, 19:17 <b>can</b> 5:19, 6:16, 6:20, 6:22, 8:6, 8:15, 9:2, 15:9, 15:23, 16:1, 18:2, 18:21, 19:12, 19:24, 19:25, 20:1, 20:23, 21:20, 22:19, 23:9,
---	--	---	---

27:10, 28:25, 29:6, 29:8, 29:11, 30:7, 30:9, 31:7, 32:7, 32:11, 33:25, 34:6, 34:12, 34:16, 35:5, 35:16, 35:17, 36:16, 38:8, 38:13, 40:7, 41:9, 41:12, 42:12, 44:19, 44:25, 46:1, 47:13, 47:21, 48:6, 48:16, 48:18 <b>can't</b> 6:3, 6:23, 19:10, 19:15, 28:8, 39:12 <b>car</b> 28:10 <b>care</b> 49:25 <b>cars</b> 27:10, 38:8, 38:14 <b>case</b> 1:5, 51:8 <b>cc</b> 47:8 <b>cement</b> 24:5 <b>center</b> 23:23, 24:8, 44:17 <b>cer</b> 2:9 <b>certain</b> 21:11 <b>certainly</b> 37:13, 44:18, 45:2, 45:24, 47:5 <b>certificate</b> 51:1 <b>certify</b> 51:2	<b>change</b> 12:22, 31:12, 34:21 <b>changes</b> 10:5, 12:23, 17:11, 17:13, 20:19, 34:8, 47:6 <b>changing</b> 22:11 <b>chart</b> 11:21 <b>chat</b> 48:17 <b>child</b> 27:21, 32:18 <b>childcare</b> 40:3 <b>children</b> 5:15, 10:12, 12:12, 13:6, 13:7, 13:23, 21:10, 21:13, 23:21, 26:10, 26:18, 26:19, 26:23, 27:10, 28:1, 28:5, 40:10, 43:5, 43:6, 43:9, 43:15 <b>citaramanis</b> 1:11, 2:2, 3:5, 5:17, 48:13 <b>clarifications</b> 49:3 <b>clarify</b> 13:3, 41:2 <b>clarifying</b> 43:17, 47:18 <b>clarity</b> 33:20 <b>clear</b> 12:9, 34:1, 34:2, 35:20, 37:17, 39:23, 42:17 <b>close</b> 21:13, 21:14,	46:9, 46:10, 49:15 <b>closer</b> 44:3 <b>closes</b> 22:21, 48:11, 49:13 <b>closet</b> 22:2, 44:6 <b>closing</b> 49:8 <b>co-owner</b> 39:7 <b>cold</b> 19:5 <b>collaborative</b> 17:14 <b>color</b> 30:6 <b>come</b> 7:13, 17:12, 25:2, 26:13, 26:22, 27:23, 28:10, 29:24, 37:15 <b>comes</b> 44:19, 47:8 <b>coming</b> 8:8, 41:13 <b>complete</b> 21:3 <b>completely</b> 31:11, 44:8 <b>compliance</b> 39:7, 44:25 <b>complies</b> 28:11 <b>concerned</b> 31:22 <b>concrete</b> 24:19, 24:20, 24:21, 24:22 <b>conditional</b> 5:6, 37:18 <b>conditioned</b> 36:18 <b>conditions</b> 12:3, 12:4	<b>conducted</b> 1:12, 2:2 <b>connect</b> 33:14 <b>considered</b> 11:24 <b>considering</b> 22:3 <b>consistent</b> 12:19, 14:18 <b>contact</b> 47:2 <b>contents</b> 15:6 <b>contract</b> 13:13, 27:20, 27:21, 30:22, 31:2, 31:5 <b>contractor</b> 41:11, 41:23 <b>control</b> 8:3, 8:5, 8:9 <b>conversations</b> 47:10 <b>copies</b> 8:4 <b>copy</b> 13:19, 34:1, 46:12, 48:13 <b>correct</b> 12:14, 12:23, 17:9, 29:18, 30:16, 32:2, 32:3, 40:19, 42:4, 45:10, 45:12, 47:25, 48:1, 48:7, 51:3 <b>correctly</b> 6:18, 9:17 <b>could</b> 5:22, 9:5, 21:9, 23:11, 23:12, 23:20, 23:25, 34:8, 40:7, 44:4, 44:8, 48:13 <b>counsel</b> 51:7
--	--	---	--

<b>county</b> 1:2, 3:2, 8:15, 14:23, 36:4, 36:13, 36:19 <b>couple</b> 47:24 <b>course</b> 20:16, 44:11, 46:10, 49:11 <b>court</b> 5:23, 5:24, 6:1, 6:5, 6:6, 7:5, 7:25, 8:2, 9:15, 45:9, 45:12, 47:16, 47:21, 48:2, 48:5, 48:8, 48:12, 48:16, 48:20, 48:23, 49:1 <b>courtroom</b> 34:7 <b>covid</b> 8:13, 26:14, 39:9, 41:17, 46:11 <b>created</b> 27:16 <b>crossed</b> 39:16 <b>cu</b> 1:5 <b>current</b> 10:6, 10:7, 10:8, 12:19, 14:24, 42:3 <b>currently</b> 10:11, 26:12	<b>dash</b> 34:2 <b>date</b> 15:17, 18:22 <b>dated</b> 11:16, 11:23 <b>daughter</b> 16:1, 16:8, 17:4, 17:11 <b>day</b> 40:20, 40:21, 45:18 <b>daycare</b> 5:7, 5:8, 5:15, 5:16, 10:12, 12:11, 16:13, 16:14, 20:23, 23:4, 23:14, 23:22, 26:21, 32:9, 34:24, 40:19, 42:3, 43:25, 44:12 <b>days</b> 22:19, 45:10, 45:13 <b>deadline</b> 41:20, 41:21 <b>deal</b> 31:23 <b>decide</b> 44:23 <b>decided</b> 21:15 <b>decision</b> 5:19, 5:21 <b>definitely</b> 18:19, 20:18, 23:9, 34:10, 45:19, 46:2 <b>definition</b> 25:21 <b>department</b> 14:16 <b>depict</b> 20:12, 34:10 <b>depicting</b> 22:9 <b>describe</b> 23:20, 23:25	<b>described</b> 34:11, 34:22 <b>description</b> 5:11 <b>design</b> 14:19, 38:17 <b>development</b> 11:21 <b>diaper</b> 22:11 <b>did</b> 9:9, 16:4, 17:3, 17:4, 17:5, 18:16, 20:8, 27:19, 36:24, 38:24, 41:9, 41:21, 44:5, 46:14, 47:22 <b>didn't</b> 11:22, 16:18, 20:25, 23:3, 25:23, 38:1 <b>difficulties</b> 15:23 <b>dimensions</b> 11:22, 11:23, 21:20, 22:3, 43:24, 44:9 <b>disappear</b> 33:5 <b>discuss</b> 22:17, 22:21 <b>doable</b> 37:1 <b>documentation</b> 47:12 <b>documents</b> 16:17, 22:20 <b>does</b> 25:13, 33:11, 33:14, 34:10, 35:6, 38:21, 38:22, 47:16 <b>doesn't</b> 15:17 <b>doing</b> 7:11, 8:13, 32:10, 36:5, 42:13, 43:18 <b>don't</b> 7:14, 8:17, 13:19, 16:21, 17:1, 18:14, 18:23, 19:8, 23:8, 23:12, 24:15, 27:5, 30:3, 30:7, 34:1, 35:2, 35:9, 35:10, 35:11, 39:3, 39:19, 39:20, 40:12, 40:17, 41:18, 41:20, 46:16, 47:11, 49:19 <b>door</b> 23:15, 23:25, 24:11, 25:12, 26:2, 26:3, 26:4, 26:23, 44:13 <b>double</b> 26:3 <b>double-check</b> 48:9 <b>down</b> 9:2, 9:16, 22:4, 24:8, 25:9, 26:22, 31:7, 32:16, 33:6, 36:16, 43:1 <b>downstairs</b> 25:7, 25:9, 26:13, 40:4 <b>dps</b> 14:17 <b>drain</b> 14:21 <b>driveway</b> 23:22, 26:12, 26:25, 27:2, 27:4, 27:6, 27:7, 38:9, 43:10, 43:14,
--	--	--

<p>43:15 <b>drop</b> 26:18, 26:23, 27:23 <b>drop-off</b> 13:6, 23:22, 26:11, 27:9, 40:23, 43:5 <b>drop-offs</b> 28:2, 28:9 <b>dropped</b> 43:9 <b>dropping</b> 13:7, 43:19 <b>due</b> 14:20 <b>duly</b> 8:22, 8:24 <b>during</b> 13:8, 22:19, 45:15 <b>dwelling</b> 23:15</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>E</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>e</b> 20:5 <b>earlier</b> 45:3 <b>early</b> 19:5 <b>easement</b> 14:21, 36:3, 36:6, 36:10, 41:8 <b>easier</b> 41:5, 48:22 <b>easily</b> 25:24, 38:13 <b>effort</b> 17:14 <b>eight</b> 10:12, 13:23, 27:18 <b>eight-child</b> 5:15 <b>else</b> 7:14, 8:17,</p>	<p>34:5 <b>email</b> 11:20, 35:21, 44:20, 46:11, 48:17 <b>emergency</b> 22:8, 36:16 <b>employed</b> 51:7 <b>employee</b> 12:12 <b>employees</b> 12:13 <b>enclosed</b> 42:9, 43:3 <b>enclosing</b> 32:21, 34:22 <b>end</b> 22:17, 22:22, 33:16, 35:25, 44:19, 45:21 <b>enforceable</b> 13:16 <b>enough</b> 45:17, 46:3 <b>enter</b> 14:23, 24:15 <b>entered</b> 49:16 <b>entering</b> 24:3 <b>entire</b> 32:16, 33:6, 34:22 <b>entrance</b> 23:13, 24:7, 26:6, 26:20, 32:5, 32:9, 43:22, 44:12, 44:13 <b>escape</b> 22:8, 23:19 <b>even</b> 21:9, 25:22, 32:17 <b>event</b> 8:19, 36:16 <b>every</b> 27:11</p>	<p><b>everybody</b> 9:19, 39:10, 39:17, 49:21, 50:1 <b>everyone</b> 49:24 <b>everything</b> 9:16, 10:6, 10:8, 17:15, 22:4, 34:5, 35:22, 41:19, 41:24, 45:16, 46:12 <b>evidence</b> 5:19, 47:12 <b>exact</b> 15:17, 18:22, 21:4 <b>exactly</b> 19:2, 25:21, 31:24, 35:7 <b>examination</b> 4:3, 8:25 <b>example</b> 8:5 <b>exhibit</b> 8:6, 15:15, 33:19, 34:15, 35:4, 35:19, 42:7, 49:10, 49:11 <b>exhibits</b> 8:3, 8:4, 8:5, 47:22, 49:9, 49:14 <b>existing</b> 5:14, 14:21, 27:15, 29:4, 29:17, 32:1, 32:6 <b>exists</b> 20:14 <b>expand</b> 5:14, 10:15, 26:17 <b>expansion</b> 21:10 <b>explain</b> 20:24, 47:20</p>	<p><b>exposed</b> 39:9 <b>extended</b> 45:25</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>F</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>f</b> 15:15, 20:5, 29:11 <b>facility</b> 12:11 <b>facing</b> 24:3 <b>fact</b> 20:17 <b>faint</b> 34:6, 34:18 <b>familiar</b> 47:23 <b>family</b> 27:21, 39:9 <b>father</b> 45:1 <b>feet</b> 21:5, 21:19, 29:5, 35:6, 35:12, 44:3 <b>fence</b> 14:15, 14:17, 14:20, 14:24, 25:10, 29:1, 29:3, 29:4, 29:8, 29:15, 29:16, 29:18, 29:21, 29:22, 30:12, 30:19, 31:12, 31:14, 31:17, 31:25, 32:1, 32:6, 32:11, 32:15, 32:16, 32:25, 33:2, 33:5, 33:6, 33:12, 33:15, 34:3, 34:9, 36:10, 41:8, 41:12, 42:9, 42:14, 42:18, 42:19,</p>
---	---	---	---

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

19

42:24 <b>fenced</b> 31:15, 34:25 <b>figure</b> 19:10, 19:15 <b>file</b> 21:9, 21:16, 37:8, 40:9 <b>fill</b> 17:3 <b>filled</b> 17:7 <b>financial</b> 51:9 <b>find</b> 37:14, 45:24 <b>fine</b> 28:25, 39:14, 46:3 <b>fingers</b> 39:16 <b>finish</b> 9:18, 9:21 <b>first</b> 7:12, 12:10, 45:9, 47:25 <b>fit</b> 38:8 <b>five</b> 29:5, 35:6, 38:14, 41:16 <b>fix</b> 6:16 <b>flag</b> 7:13 <b>follows</b> 8:22, 8:24 <b>foot</b> 21:14, 31:25, 32:1, 32:2, 34:23, 35:8 <b>footage</b> 21:11, 22:25, 27:6 <b>foregoing</b> 51:3 <b>forth</b> 47:10	<b>forward</b> 8:16 <b>four</b> 41:16 <b>frey</b> 3:14, 7:10, 19:17, 50:2 <b>friday</b> 12:18, 46:6 <b>from</b> 14:16, 15:10, 23:21, 30:16, 32:20, 33:14, 36:19, 39:7, 41:4, 41:13, 42:14, 42:21, 42:22, 42:23, 44:25, 51:5 <b>front</b> 14:17, 14:22, 23:5, 23:15, 30:8, 34:23, 35:18, 37:23, 38:8, 42:15, 42:22 <b>full</b> 40:20, 40:21 <b>full-time</b> 40:19 <b>further</b> 39:21 <hr/> <b>G</b> <hr/> <b>garage</b> 28:22, 28:23, 38:22 <b>gate</b> 24:7, 31:1, 31:7, 31:15, 31:22, 32:2, 32:4, 32:6, 32:8, 32:14, 32:18, 32:20, 33:2, 34:9, 34:23, 35:3, 35:6, 35:8, 42:10, 43:4 <b>gates</b> 23:16, 31:14	<b>geez</b> 38:12 <b>get</b> 7:4, 9:19, 13:18, 13:20, 20:9, 22:16, 23:21, 25:9, 26:2, 26:19, 27:22, 29:6, 30:23, 32:22, 38:1, 39:12, 39:14, 41:9, 41:13, 41:14, 41:19, 43:24, 44:7, 44:8, 44:25, 45:5, 45:20, 46:2, 46:20, 47:7, 47:22 <b>getting</b> 31:5, 37:2 <b>give</b> 7:8, 7:20, 18:21, 40:15, 45:22 <b>given</b> 13:19 <b>go</b> 6:25, 7:1, 7:25, 8:18, 13:3, 17:17, 17:18, 18:8, 19:9, 19:12, 19:13, 29:10, 32:20, 41:2, 41:7, 42:6, 42:21, 45:20, 47:14, 47:22 <b>goes</b> 24:5, 33:10, 33:14, 45:17, 46:18 <b>going</b> 7:6, 7:20, 8:1, 8:20, 9:1, 9:4, 9:16, 12:8, 17:17, 17:18, 19:5, 19:9,	19:11, 19:13, 19:14, 19:16, 21:23, 23:21, 25:6, 26:17, 29:10, 30:5, 31:24, 31:25, 32:2, 32:15, 33:4, 33:5, 33:13, 33:19, 34:6, 35:8, 35:21, 37:7, 37:14, 40:11, 41:11, 41:22, 42:21, 43:1, 46:17, 49:13 <b>good</b> 8:15 <b>got</b> 21:2, 22:6, 22:12, 22:23, 23:1, 26:8, 28:12, 35:1, 36:1, 36:20, 37:9, 37:20, 42:2, 42:25, 43:2, 43:11, 43:20, 44:16, 44:22, 45:2, 46:14, 46:25, 47:3, 47:15 <b>grade</b> 25:18 <b>grant</b> 36:15 <b>great</b> 7:3, 21:23, 26:9, 44:15 <b>green</b> 20:17 <b>group</b> 5:7, 5:16, 12:11 <b>guess</b> 31:11, 33:11, 35:22 <b>guilty</b> 9:13 <hr/> <b>H</b> <hr/> <b>had</b> 21:11, 30:22,
---	---	---	---

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

20

48:9 <b>half</b> 21:3 <b>half-day</b> 40:19 <b>hallelujah</b> 20:3 <b>hand</b> 16:10 <b>hand-drawn</b> 34:17 <b>hands</b> 9:2 <b>happiness</b> 49:21 <b>hard</b> 46:12 <b>has</b> 7:5, 11:9, 13:19, 15:21, 15:23, 18:24, 30:4, 35:12, 36:13, 39:9 <b>haven't</b> 23:8, 27:20 <b>having</b> 8:22, 8:24, 47:10 <b>he'll</b> 7:13 <b>he's</b> 7:11, 46:3 <b>health</b> 49:21 <b>healthy</b> 39:10, 45:17 <b>hear</b> 6:3, 6:23, 39:8, 39:11 <b>heard</b> 47:18, 47:23 <b>hearings</b> 1:1, 3:3, 7:12 <b>height</b> 14:18, 30:24, 31:13, 31:16 <b>held</b> 11:15	<b>help</b> 7:13, 7:24 <b>her</b> 6:23, 11:8, 47:5 <b>here</b> 5:18, 6:8, 18:8, 29:16, 30:8, 31:8, 35:5 <b>hereby</b> 51:2 <b>herself</b> 6:23 <b>hi</b> 6:10 <b>him</b> 41:13, 46:4 <b>his</b> 39:12, 45:18 <b>hold</b> 6:4, 7:7, 18:1, 18:7, 19:25, 45:6 <b>home</b> 19:1, 21:4 <b>hope</b> 39:10 <b>hopefully</b> 46:16, 48:3 <b>hour</b> 14:3, 14:4 <b>hours</b> 12:17, 12:19, 14:6 <b>house</b> 18:17, 23:24, 24:3, 24:4, 24:10, 24:16, 24:17, 25:6, 25:8, 25:25, 30:8, 37:24, 38:4, 38:8, 38:21, 42:15, 42:23 <b>how</b> 16:13, 16:16, 20:24, 23:20, 23:21, 27:3,	28:6, 31:1, 38:6, 38:7, 42:18, 44:13 <hr/> <b>I</b> <hr/> <b>i'll</b> 9:18, 17:12, 39:22 <b>i've</b> 9:13, 31:4, 46:8 <b>identify</b> 5:22, 6:23, 9:5 <b>improve</b> 14:24 <b>improvements</b> 20:22 <b>include</b> 11:22, 16:18, 22:1 <b>informal</b> 8:12 <b>information</b> 15:25, 46:7, 47:5, 47:18, 49:12, 51:6 <b>initially</b> 21:8 <b>inside</b> 38:22, 43:25, 44:16 <b>install</b> 30:18 <b>installing</b> 34:23 <b>interest</b> 51:8 <b>interior</b> 21:1, 22:9, 23:3, 23:9 <b>into</b> 33:13, 49:13, 49:16 <b>issue</b> 35:16, 43:16 <b>issued</b> 5:5, 10:23 <b>issues</b> 37:14, 37:16	<b>it'd</b> 20:5 <b>it's</b> 5:8, 7:24, 7:25, 8:8, 8:12, 8:15, 11:24, 13:15, 14:5, 15:8, 17:14, 19:3, 19:22, 22:24, 24:4, 24:5, 25:2, 25:20, 26:4, 27:20, 29:4, 31:25, 34:18, 35:7, 37:8, 40:20, 42:21, 43:16, 44:2, 46:19, 47:12, 48:21 <b>its</b> 14:24, 51:9 <b>itself</b> 23:14, 26:21 <hr/> <b>J</b> <hr/> <b>jade</b> 1:22, 51:2, 51:17 <b>january</b> 20:10 <b>job</b> 1:20 <b>johnson</b> 7:10, 46:22, 47:7 <b>jon</b> 3:14, 7:10 <b>july</b> 1:13, 5:3, 45:18, 46:6, 51:19 <b>june</b> 11:15, 11:16, 11:23, 45:8 <b>just</b> 7:4, 7:18, 7:19, 7:20, 8:9, 8:18, 9:10,
---	--	--	---

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

21

9:12, 9:20, 12:9, 13:1, 13:3, 13:11, 13:21, 14:2, 15:7, 15:18, 15:20, 15:22, 17:14, 18:20, 18:21, 19:6, 19:17, 21:8, 22:2, 22:5, 23:23, 24:5, 26:16, 28:7, 28:14, 28:25, 30:3, 32:21, 33:19, 34:11, 34:21, 35:12, 35:21, 36:20, 37:4, 37:17, 38:12, 38:13, 38:20, 40:6, 40:7, 40:11, 40:22, 41:1, 41:7, 41:8, 41:21, 41:22, 42:13, 42:17, 42:22, 43:1, 43:6, 43:16, 44:7, 45:25, 46:7, 46:16, 46:21, 47:10, 47:24, 48:9, 48:23	12:1, 12:6, 12:15, 12:21, 12:25, 13:10, 13:17, 14:1, 14:12, 15:2, 15:12, 15:19, 16:3, 16:6, 16:15, 16:20, 16:23, 17:1, 17:5, 17:8, 20:2, 24:21, 30:1, 33:9, 39:9, 39:22, 39:25, 40:1, 40:4, 49:2, 49:4, 49:6, 49:22 <b>kind</b> 9:15, 23:19, 23:23, 24:9, 25:3, 31:23, 44:14 <b>king</b> 1:22, 51:2, 51:17 <b>knew</b> 21:10 <b>know</b> 7:16, 7:19, 8:10, 8:14, 9:10, 9:13, 11:9, 13:12, 13:15, 13:19, 13:21, 14:2, 15:25, 17:15, 18:3, 18:22, 19:4, 19:18, 21:5, 21:12, 21:14, 28:4, 30:7, 35:7, 35:10, 35:17, 36:20, 41:8, 41:18, 41:20, 41:24, 45:25, 46:14, 46:16, 46:21 <b>knowing</b> 40:8	<b>known</b> 5:8 <b>knows</b> 30:3 <hr/> <b>L</b> <hr/> <b>laid</b> 15:8 <b>large</b> 16:13, 20:24 <b>larger</b> 44:2 <b>last</b> 6:18, 18:23 <b>least</b> 45:2, 45:10 <b>leave</b> 45:1, 45:20, 46:5 <b>leaving</b> 32:20 <b>lee</b> 2:8, 5:24, 6:5 <b>left</b> 22:18, 24:3 <b>left-hand</b> 32:15 <b>legal</b> 5:11 <b>let</b> 8:9, 9:20, 13:21, 15:22, 18:3, 19:17, 29:5, 30:9, 32:6, 43:3, 45:5, 45:25 <b>let's</b> 17:19, 18:13, 19:24, 28:25, 32:7, 33:18, 41:2, 44:23 <b>letter</b> 11:14, 11:16 <b>level</b> 25:18 <b>license</b> 40:3, 42:3 <b>licensed</b> 10:12	<b>light</b> 25:11 <b>lighting</b> 25:1, 25:3, 25:5 <b>lights</b> 25:7, 25:10 <b>like</b> 10:20, 17:13, 21:13, 28:1, 28:14, 29:5, 42:18, 43:17, 46:20 <b>likely</b> 13:2 <b>likes</b> 28:1 <b>limited</b> 12:11, 12:17, 46:18, 46:19 <b>line</b> 34:2, 42:21 <b>list</b> 40:7, 40:12, 41:3, 41:4, 49:10 <b>listed</b> 46:7 <b>little</b> 6:17, 7:23, 19:6, 31:21 <b>located</b> 16:14, 25:4, 25:5 <b>location</b> 14:21, 20:23 <b>locations</b> 14:25 <b>long</b> 17:14, 29:23, 36:21, 42:19 <b>look</b> 18:20, 19:6, 28:14 <b>looking</b> 7:7, 27:25, 32:25, 42:13 <b>looks</b> 43:17
<hr/> <b>K</b> <hr/> <b>katherine</b> 11:2, 36:23 <b>kaur</b> 1:5, 3:8, 5:7, 6:11, 6:14, 6:17, 6:22, 7:2, 8:21, 9:4, 9:7, 9:11, 9:22, 9:23, 10:2, 10:7, 10:10, 10:13, 10:16, 10:20, 10:25, 11:3, 11:6, 11:12, 11:18,			

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

22

<b>lot</b> 5:10, 20:17 <b>lower</b> 21:3 <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>M</b></p> <hr/> <b>ma'am</b> 10:2, 10:16, 11:6, 12:7, 12:21, 13:10, 15:12, 49:4 <b>made</b> 12:2, 24:4 <b>mail</b> 46:13, 46:20 <b>mailing</b> 46:22 <b>main</b> 23:15 <b>make</b> 5:19, 7:4, 7:19, 9:16, 9:20, 15:5, 27:19, 30:9, 34:8, 34:17, 38:20, 40:7, 42:8, 42:17 <b>makes</b> 39:17 <b>making</b> 40:22 <b>manpreet</b> 3:9, 6:10, 8:23 <b>many</b> 38:7 <b>marked</b> 22:8 <b>maryland</b> 1:2, 5:10, 9:8 <b>match</b> 32:1 <b>material</b> 14:18, 29:14, 30:23, 31:13, 41:18 <b>matters</b> 10:4 <b>maximum</b> 12:12, 13:6	<b>may</b> 5:5, 10:23, 13:23, 14:9, 15:20, 16:24, 35:8, 41:21 <b>maybe</b> 17:11, 19:5, 30:7, 35:7 <b>mean</b> 29:10, 31:2, 33:2, 33:22, 36:20, 38:2, 42:20, 43:17, 46:16 <b>means</b> 19:14 <b>measure</b> 44:5 <b>measured</b> 21:7, 21:8 <b>measurement</b> 16:20, 17:2, 42:23 <b>measurements</b> 16:19, 20:25, 21:4, 22:14, 42:14, 42:18 <b>meet</b> 14:19, 26:19, 33:16 <b>meets</b> 26:25, 27:1 <b>mencarini</b> 11:2 <b>metal</b> 33:6, 33:17 <b>mic</b> 6:8, 7:21 <b>microphone</b> 6:20 <b>might</b> 21:4, 27:5, 35:15, 41:4 <b>minus</b> 20:16 <b>minute</b> 6:4, 13:8, 28:2, 28:10	<b>minutes</b> 27:11 <b>moderate</b> 25:19 <b>modify</b> 37:16 <b>mom</b> 6:20, 6:24, 7:16 <b>moment</b> 7:8, 19:10, 40:14, 46:16 <b>monday</b> 1:13, 5:3, 12:18 <b>montgomery</b> 1:2, 3:2 <b>more</b> 13:2, 13:23, 14:4, 18:22, 19:6, 40:18 <b>morning</b> 14:4, 14:6, 40:23 <b>much</b> 50:2 <b>mum's</b> 42:6 <b>must</b> 12:11, 13:5, 14:15, 14:18 <b>mute</b> 19:11 <b>muting</b> 19:17 <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>N</b></p> <hr/> <b>name</b> 5:17, 6:18, 7:5, 9:9 <b>names</b> 47:23 <b>nana</b> 7:10, 13:19, 44:20, 47:14, 48:19, 48:20 <b>napping</b> 22:10	<b>nd</b> 10:24, 45:23 <b>necessarily</b> 47:11 <b>need</b> 6:8, 7:16, 7:21, 8:6, 8:7, 8:9, 9:20, 10:4, 11:8, 11:9, 14:22, 22:17, 22:20, 27:20, 32:18, 34:17, 34:20, 35:18, 37:16, 39:13, 41:4, 41:8, 43:13, 45:24, 46:11, 46:12, 47:6, 47:11, 47:12, 47:19 <b>needed</b> 7:25, 42:3 <b>needs</b> 30:12, 35:23, 45:9, 47:9, 48:4 <b>neighbor</b> 33:9 <b>neighbor's</b> 33:12 <b>neighborhood</b> 33:22 <b>neither</b> 51:7 <b>new</b> 32:4, 34:9, 49:19 <b>next</b> 41:16 <b>next-door</b> 33:9, 33:12 <b>nine</b> 21:12 <b>no-one</b> 27:1 <b>non-resident</b> 12:13, 28:16, 28:18 <b>nor</b> 51:7
--	---	---	---

<p><b>not</b> 7:25, 14:7, 14:9, 15:25, 18:6, 18:15, 19:14, 21:4, 22:1, 25:20, 25:21, 27:5, 27:21, 30:4, 33:22, 34:10, 35:7, 36:21, 36:22, 38:9, 39:13, 40:19, 43:15, 46:14, 49:8 <b>notarized</b> 39:12, 39:13, 45:20 <b>notes</b> 41:5 <b>nothing</b> 18:10 <b>nothing's</b> 8:8 <b>notice</b> 5:5, 5:21, 30:4 <b>now</b> 8:15, 9:2, 13:4, 18:9, 20:17, 29:4, 29:8, 29:10, 32:10, 32:24, 32:25, 33:15, 41:12, 44:1, 49:9 <b>number</b> 5:13, 13:22, 14:8, 14:14, 21:11, 22:19, 26:10, 34:13</p> <hr/> <p><b>O</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>o'clock</b> 46:10 <b>oath</b> 8:11 <b>obtain</b> 14:15 <b>obtained</b> 36:3, 37:6</p>	<p><b>obtaining</b> 37:18 <b>occur</b> 14:9 <b>off</b> 13:7, 19:9, 19:12, 19:13, 26:18, 26:23, 27:23, 31:12, 43:10, 43:12, 43:15, 43:19, 47:22, 50:3 <b>off-mic</b> 16:23 <b>office</b> 1:1, 3:2, 46:17 <b>officer</b> 1:11 <b>official</b> 8:1 <b>oh</b> 16:11, 17:6, 20:4, 26:24, 36:11, 40:18, 48:8, 48:20 <b>on-street</b> 37:22 <b>once</b> 25:9, 31:4, 32:18, 37:1, 46:18 <b>one</b> 7:17, 9:16, 12:10, 12:12, 13:20, 13:24, 14:3, 14:4, 14:6, 14:7, 25:11, 28:3, 28:10, 28:21, 33:17, 38:13, 38:14, 40:9, 40:18, 45:6 <b>ones</b> 18:17 <b>online</b> 42:6 <b>only</b> 7:8, 7:17,</p>	<p>18:16, 27:10, 41:14 <b>onto</b> 24:3, 25:6, 25:24 <b>open</b> 22:2, 22:5, 22:18, 41:19, 43:25, 44:17, 44:21, 45:1, 46:6 <b>operating</b> 10:12 <b>operation</b> 10:18, 12:17, 12:20, 16:14 <b>operations</b> 16:13 <b>opportunity</b> 9:19 <b>opposed</b> 43:12 <b>order</b> 36:12 <b>ordinance</b> 14:19 <b>other</b> 7:8, 7:14, 25:9, 30:24, 35:18, 39:19, 39:20, 49:18 <b>otherwise</b> 51:9 <b>our</b> 7:11, 27:20, 41:23, 42:3 <b>ours</b> 33:13 <b>out</b> 15:8, 17:4, 17:7, 19:10, 19:15, 31:24, 32:16, 32:20, 40:11, 41:22, 45:20, 46:4, 46:22 <b>outcome</b> 51:9</p>	<p><b>outline</b> 33:21 <b>outside</b> 13:24, 14:9 <b>over</b> 41:3, 42:8 <b>own</b> 8:4, 15:6 <b>owner</b> 9:25</p> <hr/> <p><b>P</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>page</b> 30:7 <b>pages</b> 1:21 <b>pandemic</b> 8:14 <b>parents</b> 13:13, 13:14, 26:13, 26:18, 26:19, 26:25, 43:21 <b>park</b> 5:12, 28:23 <b>parked</b> 38:14 <b>parking</b> 28:21, 28:22, 37:22, 37:23, 38:1, 38:3 <b>part</b> 5:20, 31:6, 37:8, 37:19, 40:8, 47:9 <b>parties</b> 5:22, 51:8 <b>path</b> 23:19, 25:1 <b>pathway</b> 23:23, 24:4, 24:10, 24:19, 25:7, 25:10, 26:22 <b>patience</b> 19:23 <b>paying</b> 41:12</p>
--	--	---	---

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

24

<p><b>people</b> 7:9, 9:21, 25:2, 49:19</p> <p><b>period</b> 13:8, 13:15, 22:19, 28:3, 28:4, 28:10, 39:17, 46:19</p> <p><b>periods</b> 46:18</p> <p><b>permit</b> 14:16, 29:20, 29:24, 30:1, 30:2, 37:3, 41:9</p> <p><b>permits</b> 31:6, 32:22, 41:13, 41:14</p> <p><b>permitted</b> 39:4</p> <p><b>permitting</b> 14:16, 35:16, 36:25</p> <p><b>personally</b> 23:7</p> <p><b>photo</b> 15:19, 19:25</p> <p><b>photographs</b> 21:1, 23:14</p> <p><b>photos</b> 15:13, 15:16, 16:5, 17:20, 17:23, 18:4, 19:16, 19:24, 20:7, 20:12, 23:3, 23:4, 23:13, 30:6</p> <p><b>pick</b> 27:23</p> <p><b>pick-up</b> 13:6, 26:11, 40:24</p> <p><b>picking</b> 13:7</p> <p><b>picture</b> 31:8, 33:11</p> <p><b>pictures</b> 17:22, 18:16, 18:22, 20:6,</p>	<p>20:20, 26:6, 44:12</p> <p><b>place</b> 30:23, 31:24</p> <p><b>places</b> 47:24</p> <p><b>plan</b> 22:8, 23:19, 31:3, 31:11</p> <p><b>planning</b> 11:14, 36:24</p> <p><b>play</b> 13:23, 14:9, 22:9, 23:5, 23:15</p> <p><b>plenty</b> 43:17</p> <p><b>point</b> 17:12, 27:19, 41:2, 47:2</p> <p><b>praying</b> 45:19</p> <p><b>pre-covid</b> 26:14</p> <p><b>precise</b> 19:6</p> <p><b>preliminaries</b> 7:20</p> <p><b>preliminary</b> 10:4</p> <p><b>premises</b> 32:19</p> <p><b>present</b> 3:13, 18:16</p> <p><b>presented</b> 17:16, 20:20</p> <p><b>pretty</b> 8:12, 34:2, 39:23</p> <p><b>prior</b> 14:9</p> <p><b>probably</b> 42:8, 44:24</p> <p><b>proceed</b> 8:16</p> <p><b>proceeding</b> 8:12</p> <p><b>proceedings</b> 51:4</p>	<p><b>process</b> 36:4, 36:20, 36:23, 37:2</p> <p><b>produced</b> 8:2</p> <p><b>producing</b> 36:18</p> <p><b>programs</b> 40:20</p> <p><b>proof</b> 37:6</p> <p><b>property</b> 20:13, 32:16, 32:22, 33:23, 42:21</p> <p><b>propose</b> 42:11</p> <p><b>proposed</b> 34:9</p> <p><b>proposing</b> 42:10</p> <p><b>provide</b> 21:20, 22:18, 23:9, 26:6</p> <p><b>provided</b> 33:21</p> <p><b>provider</b> 10:1</p> <p><b>pull</b> 8:6, 18:2, 21:23, 30:6, 33:19</p> <p><b>pulled</b> 29:7</p> <p><b>pursuant</b> 2:8, 5:5</p> <p><b>pushing</b> 8:8</p> <p><b>put</b> 9:2, 25:8, 25:24, 29:23, 31:15, 32:5, 36:12, 41:11, 41:21, 42:11, 44:6, 46:12, 47:7</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>Q</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>qualify</b> 28:16</p>	<p><b>quarantine</b> 39:17, 45:18</p> <p><b>question</b> 9:17, 16:25, 21:25, 35:5, 40:13, 40:18, 41:10, 43:6, 43:9</p> <p><b>questions</b> 7:6, 9:18, 17:12, 17:19, 35:18, 39:20, 39:21, 40:16, 47:17, 47:24, 49:3, 49:19</p> <p><b>quick</b> 18:2</p> <p><b>quite</b> 25:22</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>R</b></p> <hr/> <p><b>railing</b> 25:14</p> <p><b>raise</b> 7:13, 40:14</p> <p><b>raminder</b> 1:5, 3:8, 5:7, 6:11, 6:14, 7:2, 8:21, 9:10, 9:11</p> <p><b>rd</b> 45:23</p> <p><b>read</b> 12:9</p> <p><b>reading</b> 15:4, 30:16</p> <p><b>real</b> 18:2</p> <p><b>really</b> 22:8, 25:23, 39:10</p> <p><b>rear</b> 24:12, 33:6, 43:22</p> <p><b>reason</b> 7:24, 8:12, 15:7</p> <p><b>recommendations</b> 13:2</p>
---	---	---	--

<b>recommended</b> 11:17, 12:3 <b>record</b> 5:2, 5:12, 8:1, 9:6, 12:9, 19:9, 19:13, 19:22, 22:18, 22:21, 37:8, 37:19, 40:8, 44:20, 45:1, 46:6, 46:9, 47:9, 48:10, 49:8, 49:10, 49:12, 49:13, 49:17, 50:3, 51:3 <b>recorded</b> 7:22, 7:24, 19:14, 51:4 <b>recording</b> 9:14, 48:14, 48:24, 51:6 <b>records</b> 21:18 <b>red</b> 7:23 <b>redraw</b> 34:21 <b>referring</b> 17:25 <b>reflect</b> 20:13 <b>reflecting</b> 34:21 <b>regarding</b> 41:10 <b>regards</b> 16:12, 20:23, 26:10, 27:8, 36:2, 37:21, 38:15, 39:6 <b>regulations</b> 8:14 <b>related</b> 51:7 <b>remain</b> 41:19 <b>remains</b> 39:10	<b>remember</b> 17:2, 25:22 <b>remote</b> 7:12 <b>remotely</b> 8:13 <b>replace</b> 14:24 <b>replaced</b> 30:13, 30:23, 33:8 <b>replacing</b> 32:8 <b>report</b> 10:23, 10:25, 11:1, 11:10, 11:25, 15:11, 29:10, 30:6, 36:9, 36:21 <b>report's</b> 15:6 <b>reporter</b> 5:23, 5:24, 6:1, 6:2, 6:5, 6:6, 7:5, 7:25, 8:2, 9:15, 45:9, 45:12, 47:17, 47:21, 48:2, 48:5, 48:8, 48:12, 48:16, 48:20, 48:23, 49:1 <b>request</b> 5:14, 39:3 <b>requested</b> 43:4, 46:8 <b>requirement</b> 38:16 <b>requirements</b> 40:10 <b>resident</b> 12:12 <b>residential</b> 14:20 <b>rest</b> 31:16 <b>restricted</b> 37:25	<b>restrictions</b> 38:3 <b>reviewed</b> 10:23, 11:5, 11:11, 11:25, 12:4 <b>revocable</b> 14:23, 36:3 <b>right</b> 6:11, 6:19, 8:15, 13:4, 16:7, 16:20, 17:10, 20:6, 20:12, 21:17, 24:11, 25:11, 28:24, 29:4, 29:8, 29:10, 29:16, 31:8, 31:10, 32:24, 32:25, 33:24, 34:8, 36:1, 41:25, 44:1, 48:2, 48:5, 48:12, 48:21, 49:9 <b>role</b> 5:18 <b>roll</b> 18:21 <b>room</b> 43:18 <b>rosy</b> 3:9, 8:23 <b>rush</b> 47:25, 48:1 <hr/> <b>S</b> <hr/> <b>safely</b> 43:10 <b>safety</b> 43:16 <b>said</b> 17:10, 20:7, 21:19, 27:19, 34:15, 36:25, 38:1, 41:18, 43:3, 44:24, 51:4	<b>same</b> 17:19, 30:18, 30:23, 31:13, 31:16, 32:20, 33:13 <b>saved</b> 19:7 <b>saw</b> 16:17, 20:6, 28:21 <b>say</b> 9:9, 15:21, 31:2, 37:15 <b>saying</b> 6:17, 6:19, 28:15, 33:1 <b>says</b> 21:18, 24:7, 31:15, 44:2 <b>schedule</b> 13:5, 27:13, 27:14, 27:15, 27:16, 27:18, 27:25 <b>screen</b> 18:5, 19:11 <b>scroll</b> 31:7 <b>second</b> 6:4, 7:8, 18:2, 18:8, 45:6 <b>section</b> 5:12 <b>secure</b> 31:19, 35:12 <b>securely</b> 32:19 <b>see</b> 5:23, 7:9, 7:14, 7:23, 8:6, 8:17, 15:22, 18:3, 18:4, 18:8, 18:13, 18:14, 19:24, 19:25, 21:9, 23:3, 23:14, 24:7, 29:4, 29:6, 29:8,
--	---	---	---

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

26

<p>29:11, 29:16, 29:24, 30:9, 31:14, 32:7, 32:11, 32:12, 33:18, 33:25, 34:6, 39:3, 43:3, 49:19 <b>seeing</b> 31:22 <b>seeking</b> 10:14 <b>send</b> 40:7, 42:3, 42:9, 46:2, 46:4, 47:13, 48:13, 48:16, 48:18, 48:20, 48:23 <b>sentences</b> 9:21 <b>services</b> 14:16 <b>set</b> 22:18, 45:3 <b>set-back</b> 11:23 <b>share</b> 19:10, 19:15 <b>she</b> 11:4, 11:9, 15:21, 15:23, 16:8, 17:5, 17:6, 17:15, 47:1 <b>she's</b> 16:24 <b>short</b> 31:23 <b>shorter</b> 30:11, 31:12 <b>should</b> 7:23, 19:7, 47:13 <b>show</b> 15:15 <b>showing</b> 34:24 <b>shows</b> 23:19, 33:11,</p>	<p>33:12 <b>siblings</b> 28:5, 28:15 <b>side</b> 23:24, 24:16, 25:6, 25:8, 25:24, 26:6, 32:5, 32:15, 38:13, 38:21, 42:14 <b>sidewalk</b> 17:24, 42:16 <b>sidewalks</b> 18:17 <b>sign</b> 39:2, 39:3, 39:4 <b>signature-vxf4j</b> 51:13 <b>signed</b> 7:9, 31:5 <b>signing</b> 13:14 <b>signs</b> 27:22 <b>silver</b> 5:9, 9:7, 9:8 <b>since</b> 7:11, 8:17, 10:18, 17:18, 23:12, 41:5, 41:10 <b>single</b> 26:2, 26:4 <b>six</b> 12:3, 12:6 <b>size</b> 16:18 <b>sliding</b> 26:4 <b>slot</b> 27:22, 43:5 <b>solar</b> 25:7, 25:10 <b>some</b> 7:20, 15:4, 23:7, 23:19, 47:23</p>	<p><b>somebody</b> 23:20, 38:22 <b>someone</b> 36:24, 38:21, 47:19 <b>something</b> 10:19, 10:20, 36:13, 44:19 <b>sometime</b> 18:23, 45:15 <b>sorry</b> 6:5, 16:11, 19:5, 21:13, 22:1, 38:1, 39:8, 39:11 <b>sounds</b> 17:13 <b>space</b> 16:19, 22:2, 22:5, 38:21, 43:13, 43:14, 43:25, 44:17 <b>spaces</b> 38:7 <b>speak</b> 9:20, 15:20, 16:24, 36:24 <b>speaking</b> 16:23, 41:6 <b>specifics</b> 35:9 <b>speech</b> 9:20 <b>spell</b> 7:6, 47:19 <b>spellings</b> 47:18, 47:22 <b>split</b> 14:6 <b>spoke</b> 35:22, 41:10 <b>spoken</b> 36:23 <b>spring</b> 5:9, 9:7, 9:8 <b>square</b> 21:5, 21:11, 21:14, 21:18,</p>	<p>22:24, 27:6, 44:3 <b>stable</b> 35:13 <b>staff</b> 10:23, 10:25, 11:1, 11:10, 11:24, 12:2, 15:6, 15:11, 21:19, 26:18, 26:25, 28:16, 28:18, 30:16, 36:9, 36:21, 38:19, 46:15, 46:18 <b>staff's</b> 29:10, 30:6 <b>staggered</b> 13:5 <b>staggering</b> 27:9 <b>stairs</b> 24:6, 24:8, 25:13, 25:15, 25:23, 25:24, 26:22, 44:17 <b>stairway</b> 32:8, 44:13 <b>standards</b> 14:19 <b>start</b> 9:2, 9:4, 15:10, 17:19, 37:2, 37:6, 41:15, 41:23, 42:8 <b>started</b> 7:4, 36:4, 36:19, 36:22 <b>state</b> 9:5, 40:10 <b>station</b> 22:10 <b>stay</b> 19:12 <b>stays</b> 45:17 <b>steep</b> 25:19, 25:20,</p>
--	---	---	---

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

27

25:22 <b>stepping</b> 24:19 <b>steps</b> 35:3 <b>still</b> 19:7, 25:3, 46:11 <b>stones</b> 24:19 <b>stop</b> 19:16 <b>storm</b> 14:21, 36:10 <b>street</b> 17:24, 18:17, 38:10, 38:11, 38:12, 38:14, 43:13, 43:16 <b>strong</b> 46:3 <b>stuff</b> 46:20 <b>submit</b> 22:20, 37:7, 46:7, 47:13, 49:12 <b>submitted</b> 9:24, 10:6, 15:14, 16:18, 22:20, 35:23, 39:13, 49:15 <b>sufficient</b> 43:14 <b>support</b> 3:14, 7:11, 11:17 <b>supported</b> 38:19 <b>supporting</b> 51:6 <b>sure</b> 7:4, 7:19, 9:16, 25:21, 35:7, 38:20, 40:23, 43:7, 45:7 <b>swear</b> 7:7, 8:20	<b>sworn</b> 17:18, 40:15 <hr/> <b>T</b> <hr/> <b>take</b> 5:18, 16:4, 19:11, 26:22, 31:11, 32:21, 49:25 <b>taken</b> 15:17, 17:21, 18:20, 19:20, 20:9, 36:16 <b>taking</b> 28:21, 41:5 <b>talk</b> 12:24, 26:14, 28:25, 35:24 <b>talked</b> 46:8 <b>talking</b> 15:4, 18:3, 19:23, 26:16, 38:10, 42:22 <b>tall</b> 35:8 <b>taller</b> 29:15, 31:13 <b>tammy</b> 1:11, 2:2, 3:5, 5:17 <b>tax</b> 5:11, 5:12, 21:18 <b>technical</b> 3:14, 7:11 <b>tell</b> 34:12, 41:3, 45:23 <b>terms</b> 35:16 <b>testified</b> 8:22, 8:24 <b>testifies</b> 16:8 <b>testify</b> 8:19, 15:24 <b>testifying</b> 7:15, 7:22	<b>testimony</b> 8:11, 15:6, 15:8, 15:9, 15:11, 40:16, 44:2 <b>th</b> 5:6, 11:16, 11:23, 45:15, 45:17, 45:18, 46:2, 46:6, 46:10, 48:4, 48:7, 49:15, 49:16 <b>than</b> 7:14, 13:23, 14:4 <b>thank</b> 9:3, 26:9, 39:15, 39:18, 39:24, 40:1, 43:1, 44:10, 49:6, 49:22, 49:23, 50:2 <b>thanks</b> 19:22 <b>that's</b> 11:2, 12:22, 17:9, 17:15, 17:24, 19:2, 21:15, 21:19, 22:4, 24:12, 28:6, 28:25, 29:7, 29:13, 30:12, 30:19, 31:6, 33:9, 35:3, 39:14, 43:18, 45:12, 49:1 <b>their</b> 9:21, 15:11, 26:18, 26:19, 26:23, 31:6 <b>them</b> 11:21, 12:9, 12:24, 13:14, 13:15, 17:20, 18:2, 19:7, 19:24, 20:9,	43:19, 43:22, 47:23 <b>themselves</b> 5:23 <b>then</b> 16:8, 17:10, 17:11, 18:24, 24:6, 24:9, 24:10, 25:8, 25:11, 28:10, 29:5, 31:12, 33:16, 37:2, 37:16, 39:22, 42:2, 43:23, 44:11, 46:2, 49:14 <b>there</b> 6:11, 6:25, 7:1, 8:18, 11:10, 11:13, 12:23, 15:10, 17:15, 21:10, 21:12, 22:4, 24:4, 24:6, 24:8, 25:7, 25:10, 25:11, 25:14, 29:20, 29:22, 30:19, 31:10, 31:16, 33:7, 33:14, 34:8, 34:24, 35:21, 36:13, 40:11, 40:13, 40:14, 41:22, 42:11, 43:18, 43:19, 43:24, 44:11, 46:4 <b>there's</b> 11:16, 17:10, 20:25, 22:13, 24:10, 26:24, 32:19, 37:14, 40:12, 47:5 <b>these</b> 13:1, 34:8, 39:24 <b>they</b> 11:15, 13:15,
--	---	---	--

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

28

15:7, 15:14, 15:16, 17:21, 20:9, 20:12, 20:13, 22:20, 24:9, 26:21, 26:22, 27:22, 28:15, 30:6, 31:4, 31:5, 31:11, 31:15, 32:20, 32:22, 36:14, 36:25, 41:12, 41:17, 41:24 <b>they're</b> 12:5, 14:6, 31:24, 32:18 <b>thing</b> 31:6, 37:1, 41:14 <b>think</b> 5:8, 11:15, 16:24, 21:23, 30:3, 32:7, 35:9, 35:11, 35:20, 36:24, 39:23, 40:12, 40:17, 42:7, 44:4, 44:6, 45:14, 45:16, 47:21, 49:1 <b>thinking</b> 38:13 <b>this</b> 5:14, 7:19, 9:14, 10:20, 17:12, 18:14, 18:23, 18:24, 18:25, 19:3, 20:10, 26:14, 27:16, 29:22, 30:9, 31:8, 31:12, 32:14, 32:18, 32:23, 33:1, 33:15, 33:16, 33:19, 33:20, 34:9, 34:10, 35:19, 40:14, 40:18,	41:2, 41:10, 41:19, 44:19, 44:24, 46:15, 51:8 <b>those</b> 12:4, 15:4, 15:16, 16:5, 17:23, 18:15, 18:19, 20:6, 20:7, 20:12, 22:20, 28:5, 28:9, 44:8, 49:14 <b>though</b> 44:7 <b>three</b> 28:1, 28:2, 28:8, 28:9 <b>through</b> 12:18, 13:3, 15:15, 24:5, 39:17, 47:14, 47:23, 48:17 <b>throw</b> 40:11 <b>till</b> 45:23 <b>time</b> 7:12, 13:24, 14:9, 25:2, 26:15, 27:22, 29:23, 38:14, 39:14, 45:3, 49:23 <b>timestamp</b> 20:9 <b>today</b> 5:3, 20:14, 49:20 <b>told</b> 41:16 <b>too</b> 36:21 <b>took</b> 15:15, 17:20, 17:22, 20:7 <b>top</b> 7:23, 35:3	<b>total</b> 14:5 <b>transcribed</b> 1:22, 51:5 <b>transcriber</b> 51:1 <b>transcript</b> 47:25, 51:3 <b>transcription</b> 2:1 <b>transportation</b> 27:25 <b>true</b> 17:16, 51:3 <b>try</b> 42:8 <b>trying</b> 18:20 <b>turn</b> 6:8, 6:20, 6:24, 24:9 <b>twice</b> 46:19 <b>two</b> 12:13, 13:7, 14:6, 14:7, 27:10, 28:4, 28:9, 44:24 <b>two-car</b> 27:7 <b>type</b> 24:18, 24:25, 25:17, 26:1, 30:19 <hr/> <b>U</b> <hr/> <b>uh</b> 36:8 <b>uh-huh</b> 36:7 <b>under</b> 8:11, 29:5 <b>understand</b> 11:8, 13:9, 13:25, 14:11, 15:1, 27:9, 28:8, 37:5, 38:16, 39:4,	39:8, 39:11 <b>understandable</b> 42:1 <b>understanding</b> 36:15 <b>unless</b> 28:4, 32:20 <b>unmute</b> 6:20 <b>unrestricted</b> 37:23, 38:2 <b>until</b> 9:17, 46:6 <b>update</b> 34:8 <b>use</b> 5:6 <b>utterback</b> 2:8, 5:25, 6:6, 45:11 <hr/> <b>V</b> <hr/> <b>vehicles</b> 13:7 <b>very</b> 34:1, 34:6, 34:18, 46:19, 50:2 <b>vibrantots</b> 5:8 <b>virtually</b> 1:12, 2:2 <hr/> <b>W</b> <hr/> <b>wait</b> 6:4, 9:17, 9:19, 41:23 <b>waiver</b> 38:17, 38:25 <b>want</b> 13:3, 15:9, 19:13, 41:21, 42:18, 45:22 <b>wanted</b> 7:4, 7:18, 38:20, 41:1, 43:24, 46:21 <b>wants</b> 40:13
--	---	---	---

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

29

<p><b>was</b> 10:23, 11:13, 11:23, 18:22, 18:23, 19:4, 19:5, 20:8, 21:12, 21:14, 23:8, 25:21, 27:25, 29:17, 29:22, 29:24, 29:25, 31:21, 41:5, 41:7, 42:6, 43:6, 43:8, 43:16, 43:24 <b>wasn't</b> 25:22, 43:6 <b>waving</b> 16:10 <b>way</b> 24:22, 24:24, 32:11, 32:16, 32:19, 33:11, 35:17, 48:22 <b>we'll</b> 12:23, 13:18, 13:20, 22:21, 32:21, 35:24, 40:6, 46:5 <b>we're</b> 6:12, 7:11, 9:1, 9:4, 17:24, 18:3, 19:13, 19:21, 22:3, 26:14, 26:16, 32:10, 32:15, 32:21, 37:17, 38:9, 45:18, 46:11, 46:17, 49:10 <b>we've</b> 19:1, 41:16, 46:8 <b>week</b> 45:15, 45:21, 46:19 <b>weeks</b> 41:16, 44:24 <b>well</b> 6:9, 9:14,</p>	<p>11:25, 15:24, 18:1, 20:9, 21:5, 25:11, 25:12, 26:7, 26:14, 27:13, 31:17, 41:22, 42:20, 45:9, 45:17, 47:8, 47:14 <b>were</b> 11:20, 15:16, 16:10, 17:21, 18:16, 18:19, 19:23, 20:9, 21:15, 25:24, 28:5, 28:15, 28:21, 34:7, 41:5, 43:18, 44:6, 44:12, 51:4 <b>what</b> 8:2, 13:3, 17:24, 18:3, 18:25, 19:2, 19:4, 21:19, 22:17, 23:23, 24:18, 24:25, 25:3, 25:17, 26:1, 27:9, 29:14, 30:7, 30:12, 30:15, 30:25, 31:11, 32:10, 32:25, 33:20, 34:10, 35:18, 35:22, 36:5, 39:12, 41:3, 41:16, 41:20 <b>what's</b> 17:7, 23:25, 33:7, 34:2, 42:23 <b>whatever</b> 15:9, 40:10, 47:8 <b>when</b> 7:6, 7:21, 15:16, 16:8,</p>	<p>17:20, 21:15, 22:1, 26:17, 27:21, 31:7, 41:10, 41:24, 44:5, 46:17 <b>where</b> 16:14, 20:24, 24:7, 26:17, 26:18, 27:19, 28:21, 30:3, 31:1, 31:14, 31:25, 43:9, 43:13, 43:18 <b>where's</b> 23:24, 25:4 <b>whether</b> 35:16, 35:17 <b>which</b> 12:19, 15:19, 19:14, 24:8, 34:3, 34:22, 49:10 <b>while</b> 41:5, 42:13, 44:20 <b>white</b> 29:4 <b>who</b> 7:10, 15:15, 17:20, 36:23, 40:15, 46:21 <b>who's</b> 9:16 <b>whole</b> 32:22 <b>why</b> 19:8, 19:10, 19:15 <b>will</b> 5:20, 7:15, 8:7, 8:11, 8:18, 9:19, 13:2, 13:12, 14:3, 14:22, 15:5, 15:24, 16:8, 17:11, 18:14, 22:16, 22:17, 22:18, 26:5,</p>	<p>27:16, 28:20, 31:5, 31:15, 31:16, 31:18, 32:4, 32:5, 32:8, 32:22, 33:16, 35:4, 36:15, 36:18, 37:18, 39:4, 40:9, 40:14, 41:13, 42:7, 43:9, 44:7, 44:8, 45:18, 45:19, 46:2, 46:4, 46:9, 46:22, 47:7, 49:11, 49:16, 49:20 <b>winter</b> 25:2 <b>wire</b> 31:22 <b>wish</b> 34:7, 49:20 <b>wishes</b> 40:15 <b>with</b> 6:11, 9:2, 9:4, 12:19, 13:6, 13:13, 13:14, 14:23, 15:3, 15:14, 16:12, 17:20, 18:11, 19:11, 20:23, 26:10, 27:8, 29:24, 30:23, 34:9, 36:2, 36:4, 36:5, 36:6, 36:15, 37:14, 37:16, 37:21, 38:15, 39:6, 41:15, 42:9, 44:24, 49:18 <b>within</b> 14:20, 28:1, 28:2, 32:19, 41:20 <b>without</b> 37:6</p>
---	---	---	--

Transcript of Hearing  
Conducted on July 6, 2020

30

<p>won't 41:15 wooden 33:14 work 18:14, 41:24 working 45:10 worry 35:2 would 6:2, 21:22, 23:21, 26:20, 28:3, 28:15, 30:3, 31:1, 36:25, 37:15, 41:14, 45:1, 47:1 wouldn't 28:3, 32:17, 37:5 wrappings 31:22 wraps 33:15, 44:14 write 43:1 wrong 44:8</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>Y</b></p> <hr/> <p>yard 14:17, 14:22, 23:5, 23:16, 24:6, 33:6, 35:18, 43:4 yeah 11:18, 17:1, 24:14, 34:19, 38:6, 39:1, 46:13, 47:21, 48:8 year 18:23, 18:24, 18:25, 19:3, 20:10 yes 6:1, 6:15,</p>	<p>9:23, 10:2, 10:7, 10:10, 10:13, 10:16, 10:20, 10:21, 11:3, 11:6, 11:12, 12:1, 12:6, 12:15, 12:21, 13:10, 13:17, 14:1, 14:12, 14:13, 15:2, 15:12, 16:2, 16:3, 17:8, 20:1, 20:2, 20:8, 20:15, 20:18, 23:11, 24:24, 28:19, 28:23, 29:2, 29:7, 29:12, 29:19, 30:2, 30:10, 30:14, 30:17, 30:20, 31:8, 31:10, 31:20, 32:3, 33:3, 33:10, 34:4, 34:14, 36:22, 38:11, 38:18, 39:5, 40:25, 42:20, 43:23, 44:1, 44:16, 45:16, 46:24, 48:21, 49:5 yet 18:6, 18:10, 18:14 you're 7:21, 8:7, 9:18, 10:11, 10:14, 17:7, 24:2, 25:6, 28:14, 32:1, 33:1, 42:13, 49:4 you've 10:6, 10:18, 17:18, 21:7, 22:7, 27:16, 38:16</p>	<p>your 6:8, 6:9, 6:16, 6:18, 6:20, 7:5, 7:20, 7:21, 8:4, 8:11, 9:2, 9:5, 9:9, 10:5, 12:19, 13:13, 13:14, 15:6, 15:8, 15:11, 16:1, 16:8, 16:10, 16:17, 17:4, 17:11, 19:23, 22:8, 23:18, 26:10, 27:25, 33:22, 36:10, 37:24, 38:8, 39:8, 39:9, 40:2, 41:4, 44:2, 44:25, 47:1, 49:23 yours 33:7 yourself 6:21, 9:5</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>Z</b></p> <hr/> <p>zone 5:11, 14:20 zoning 1:1, 3:2, 14:19 zoom 8:7</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>0</b></p> <hr/> <p>02977061 5:13 03 1:5, 5:7, 19:22</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>1</b></p> <hr/> <p>10 19:22, 45:10, 45:12, 49:20, 50:3 12 5:15, 10:17, 12:12, 21:10,</p>	<p>21:13, 26:11, 26:17, 27:17, 40:9, 43:5 13 5:13 14 33:19, 33:20, 34:15, 34:16, 35:4, 42:7, 42:13, 45:18, 51:19 15 13:8, 27:11, 28:2, 28:10 16 11:16, 45:17 17 5:10, 15:15, 20:4, 29:11, 33:1 18 43:5 19 8:13, 11:23</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>2</b></p> <hr/> <p>20 1:5, 5:6, 5:7, 45:15 2003 10:18 2020 1:13, 5:3, 5:6, 10:24, 11:16, 11:24, 51:19 20910 5:10, 9:8 22 10:24, 45:23 23 45:23 24 46:2, 46:6, 46:10, 48:4, 48:7, 49:15, 49:16</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>3</b></p> <hr/> <p>3.5 31:25</p>
--	--	--	--

<b>30</b> 1:14, 5:4 <b>307554</b> 1:20 <b>35</b> 49:11 <b>39</b> 49:20, 50:3 <hr/> <b>4</b> <hr/> <b>4</b> 13:22 <b>4.5</b> 35:8 <b>4th</b> 11:15 <hr/> <b>5</b> <hr/> <b>5</b> 14:8 <b>5-feet</b> 35:9 <b>5.5</b> 32:1, 32:2, 34:23, 35:12 <b>501</b> 5:9, 9:7 <b>51</b> 1:21 <hr/> <b>6</b> <hr/> <b>6</b> 14:14 <b>60</b> 5:10 <b>650</b> 21:18, 44:2 <b>6th</b> 5:3 <hr/> <b>9</b> <hr/> <b>9</b> 1:14, 5:4 <b>900</b> 21:5, 21:14, 44:3	
---	--